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About
the Small Business
Development Corporation
What do we do?
In keeping with the Government’s key

U

goals, the SBDC responsibly manages the

orporatjo State’s finances through the efficient and
effective delivery of services to the small
business sector in Western Australia. In
addition,1!it encourages economic activity
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ormatlor.
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and reduces regulatory burdens on the
private sector through its national and state
wide policy negotiations.
The SBDC is structured into four key
areas; Small Business Services including

S
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Who are we?

the Specialised Business Services Advisory

The Small Business Development Corporation

team, the State Migration Centre and the

(SBDC) is a State Government statutory authority,

Business Information and Licensing Centre;

established in 1984 to drive the development and

Policy Planning and Stakeholder Relations,

growth of small businesses throughout Western

including the Small Business Advocacy

Australia.  

Service and Ready Response Network;

The SBDC is now the primary provider of advice
and guidance to small business operators
throughout the State, providing information,
referral, business services, and programs tailored to
the specific needs of the small business sector.
The SBDC also promotes the small business
sector through research, advocacy, liaison and
communication activities and supports the 26
Small Business Centres throughout Western
Australia.
Since 2006, the SBDC has also been responsible
for the State Migration Centre.

Business Facilitation Service, including
the Small Business Centre Network and
Corporate Affairs and Communications and
Corporate Resources.
Through the Small Business Centre
Network, the SBDC supports and facilitates
the provision of an extensive range of
services to businesses throughout regional
and metropolitan Western Australia.
The SBDC provides most of its services
free of charge, with a revenue base raised
through business workshops and the sale
of small business publications.  
There are currently 196,000 small
businesses in Western Australia responsible
for 35 per cent of all employment in the
State.
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Chairman’s
report

It is a pleasure to provide the introduction to this report which chronicles the
projects and achievements of the Small Business Development Corporation
(SBDC) this financial year.
Over the past twelve months, the business sector in Western Australia has
certainly been challenged. We started the year with a booming economy and
labour shortages, and ended it with a global financial crisis and the prospect
that some businesses may have to put off much-valued workers.
Responding to these changing conditions has required the SBDC to rapidly
analyse economic issues and be ready to put plans quickly into action, often
working across government and private sector agencies.
I am proud to say the year has had many highlights in regard to performance and responses by the management and
staff of the SBDC and these achievements are indicative of their commitment and expertise.  I would like to thank my
colleagues on the Board and the management and staff of the SBDC for their tireless contribution to the success of the
small business sector in Western Australia.
Operationally, I am very pleased to see that while some client numbers have been lower than expected, the level of
customer satisfaction has been extremely high. This is a fine example of the high standards set by staff who ensure the
very best service is provided.
Further examples include the record level of migration enquiries handled this year by the State Migration Centre, the
contribution by SBDC to several national projects arising from the Council of Australian Governments (COAG) reform
agenda and Small Business Ministerial Council (SBMC) initiatives, and the organisation of functions and events for
small business network groups.
Throughout the year, the SBDC has continued to build its reputation as a strong advocate for the small business sector
in this State, and a reliable government representative at federal forums.
During this year in review, the Board has also undergone some changes. Stuart Thompson, our longstanding and
hardworking board member from Bunbury retired from his position in June. We thank Stuart most sincerely for
his contribution to the small business sector and to the Board, particularly when he so ably stepped up as interim
Chairman during 2006-07.
Ms Kitty Prodonovich is our new Board member and brings a wealth of knowledge and experience to the Board. Kitty
has owned and operated two very successful small businesses in Kalgoorlie, and has been President of the Regional
Chambers of Commerce and Industry for several years.
Looking ahead, the SBDC will be actively pursuing new projects and initiatives in the coming year. We are keen to
build on our previous work in areas such as indigenous business development, and to introduce new programs aimed
at building business resilience and reducing the unnecessary compliance burden which hinders the growth of small
business in the State.
As these new initiatives come on stream, the SBDC will be taking a significant leadership role in encouraging small
business operators to increase their skills and take their businesses to the next level.
Patria Jafferies
Chair
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MANAGING
DIRECTOR’S
REPORT
The 2008-09 financial year can be best described as an
extraordinary twelve months and this annual report provides a
review of how the SBDC has responded to a range of challenges
over this reporting period.
The year began with strong economic growth, driven
predominately by the resources sector, unprecedented low
unemployment, and high wages growth. This brought
significant cost pressures for business as demand for real estate
sent commercial tenancy prices soaring and businesses struggled
to cope with labour shortages.
The Federal Government’s Council of Australian Governments
(COAG) program and subsequent working groups kicked into
top gear and it was encouraging to see that business regulation
and a seamless economy were high on the priority list.
At the State level, although riding high on the wave of
record budget surpluses, business was still being hindered by
issues relating to planning approvals, red tape and a lack of
infrastructure which would help the business sector take full
advantage of the strong economic conditions.
In September, the State election brought a change of
Government with new initiatives including a review of
Departments and functions with an aim to streamlining and
improving outcomes for business.
By the end of October, the impact of the US sub prime crisis was
being felt, and the subsequent world economic meltdown took
its toll across the globe.
The biggest impact in WA was not necessarily the economic
hit, but the effect it had on confidence in the marketplace,
particularly consumer and business confidence.
Through all of this activity, the SBDC has maintained an active
role in supporting and advising the small business sector in
Western Australia.
Whether participating in national working parties for business
regulation and immigration, providing key small business policy
advice to State Ministers, working across government agencies
to ensure better understanding of the needs of the sector, or
working on the development of programs to assist businesses
dealing with uncertain times, the SBDC has maintained a high
and very effective presence in the marketplace.
4

Throughout 2008-09, the Corporation has

initiatives and projects that the Corporation has

continued to work on our cultural change

undertaken over the last twelve months, two of

process, specifically looking at our approach

which I would like to highlight.

to customer service. The initial results reported

− In January 2009, the closure by BHP Billiton
of its Ravensthorpe Nickel Operation had an
immediate and devastating impact on the
communities of Hopetoun and Ravensthorpe.
Many business operators had been attracted
to the region by the projected 30 year mine
life and substantial growth in the region’s
population. This evaporated overnight and
businesses were left with little hope for
the future. The SBDC was one of the first
agencies into the region and maintained a
strong presence over ensuing weeks to work
with businesses in identifying strategies for
the future. Our support for these businesses
is ongoing. This response by the SBDC
demonstrated our ability to move quickly and
decisively in response to a crisis.

against the KPIs, show a marked improvement

− The other area I would like to mention is
the SBDC’s role in policy development that
benefits the business sector. Red tape is the
most common challenge for business, and
the Minister for Commerce has announced
an immediate review of the impact of red
tape with a view to significantly reducing its
impact on businesses in Western Australia.

can have a very positive influence in Government.

The SBDC is playing a key role in this
initiative by working with the Department
of Treasury and Finance to support the
work of the Red Tape Reduction Group.
Similarly, we are working with a number of
other State agencies on regulatory initiatives
such as greater harmonisation of disclosure
statements for commercial tenancies and the
Australian Business Names project with the
Department of Commerce. It is the input of
the business perspective that will bring about
positive change to these processes.

over previous years and we will continue this
process to ensure that our clients have the best

managing director’s report

This annual report illustrates the individual

possible experience when dealing with the SBDC.
Over the next twelve months, the Corporation
will be launching a number of new initiatives
that will have a very strong impact and benefit to
the business community and we will continue to
collaborate across private and public sectors to
ensure the work we are undertaking has meaning
for the business sector in Western Australia.
I am particularly proud of the work carried out
by the staff of the SBDC, their commitment,
professionalism and passion in performing their
roles and for demonstrating that a small agency
I thank them all for their work over the past year.
I would also like to acknowledge the commitment
of the Chairman and Board of the SBDC who
have provided strong support to our activities and
have been a guiding hand for the Corporation.
I am looking forward to the next twelve months,
which I believe will see strong growth in the small
business sector.
Stephen Moir
Managing Director
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agency
structure

Responsible Minister
The Hon. Troy Buswell, Minister for Commerce, is the Minister responsible for the
Small Business Development Corporation.
Enabling Legislation
The Small Business Development Corporation Act 1983 makes provision for
the establishment of the SBDC to encourage, promote, facilitate and assist the
establishment, development and carrying on of small business in the State and
for incidental and other purposes.

SBDC  is centrally located at 553 Hay Street, Perth

Kitty Prodonovich
Back row: Geoff Brayshaw, Paul Niardone, Stephen Moir, Larissa Beeson, Stuart Thompson.
Front row: Patria Jafferies, Chris Jones.

SBDC Board
The SBDC is governed by a Board, drawn from the private sector under the
auspices of the Small Business Development Corporation Act 1983. The
eight-member SBDC Board meets on a monthly basis to consider issues
relevant to the direction and operation of the Corporation. Membership as
at 30 June 2009 comprised:
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Chris Jones

Patria Jafferies was appointed
Chairman of the SBDC Board on
30 April 2007, a role to which she
brings considerable expertise gained
over twenty years with such wellknown Australian entities as Dome
Coffees Australia, Matilda Bay
Brewing Company, Cullen Wines and
the Reserve Bank of Australia.

Chris Jones was appointed to the
SBDC Board in December 2004 and
is a Director of Chris Jones Plumbing
which services the Pilbara, Gascoyne
and Mid West regions with bases
in both Port Hedland and Kalbarri.
He is Past President of the Port
Hedland Chamber of Commerce
and former Councillor of the Town
of Port Hedland. Mr Jones is also
Deputy Chair of the WA Plumbers’
Licensing Board, representing
regional plumbers throughout
Western Australia and a current
member of the Mid West Chamber
of Commerce & Industry.

Ms Jafferies was named Australian
National Telstra Businesswoman of
the Year in 2000, and in 1995 won
the Austrade New Exporter of the
Year Award and the AIM Excellence
in Management Award for Women.
Larissa Beeson

Larissa Beeson has been a member
of the SBDC Board since December
2004. Ms Beeson is also Regional
Head of Transaction Banking WA/SA,
Institutional Bank at the ANZ Bank
and has worked with many business
groups ranging in size from small to
large, and with women in business
during her career. Additionally Ms
Beeson, together with her husband
operates a furniture upholstery
business.

Paul Niardone

Paul Niardone joined the Board
in April 2007. He is currently
Executive Director of Professional
Public Relations (WA), a Director
of Meridian Minerals, Murdoch
University Senator, Advisory Board
Member of Perth Glory Football Club
and a Member of the Institute of
Company Directors. Mr Niardone has
extensive experience in business and
was the Manager of the Peel Region
Business Enterprise Centre.

Ms Prodonovich is currently the
president of the Regional Chambers
of Commerce and Industry in WA
and Business Manager at Como
Engineers.

Agency structure

Patria Jafferies - Chair

Stuart Thompson

Stuart Thompson was appointed to
the SBDC Board in July 2003 and
completed his term on the Board
in June 2009. Mr Thompson is a
Director of Thompson McRobert
Edgeloe, a town planning
management and engineering firm
based in Bunbury and a former
Chairman and Committee Member
of the Small Business Centre Bunbury
Wellington.
Stephen Moir
(Member ex-officio)

Stephen Moir was appointed
Managing Director of the SBDC
in June 2007, having acted in
the position since July 2006. Mr
Moir was previously the Director,
Business Facilitation Services. He
has a background in retail, tourism,
business management, and human
resource development.

Geoff Brayshaw

Geoff Brayshaw was appointed to
the SBDC Board in January 2005. Mr
Brayshaw is a Non Executive Director,
Audit Committee Chairman of the
Fortescue Metals Group Limited and
Poseidon Nickel Limited and NonExecutive Director, Audit Committee
Chairman of Forton Insurance Group
Limited. He is also a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants,
Associate of the Institute of
Company Directors and past
National President of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants.

Caterina (Kitty) Prodonovich

Kitty Prodonovich was appointed
to the Board in May 2008 and
took up her position in September
2008. Ms Prodonovich has owned
and operated a number of small
businesses, including two award
winning businesses in the Goldfields.
She was the recipient of the
Goldfields Young Achiever Award
and winner of the 2002 Goldfields
Business of the Year. She was elected
the youngest executive member of
the Kalgoorlie Boulder Chamber of
Commerce and Industry and is a past
president.
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The SBDC facilitates the development and growth of
small businesses in Western Australia by providing
information, guidance, referral and business facilitation
services and delivering programs to address specific
needs within the small business sector. The SBDC
promotes the small business sector through research,
advocacy, liaison and communication activities
and supports the Small Business Centre network
throughout Western Australia.
Vision
To be the driving force for small businesses to be major
contributors to the State’s economy.
Mission
To create opportunity and wealth for small business in
Western Australia.
Values
• Independent
• Innovative
• Responsive
• Rewarding, stimulating and enjoyable workplace
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To stimulate a culture of enterprise and
celebrate the success of small business
• Promote understanding and recognition of
the contribution of small business to the
Western Australian economy, and the relative
importance of the sector to continuing
economic prosperity and society.
• Promote Western Australia as the best place to
start and run a business.
• Promote business start up and development as
an exciting, worthwhile and rewarding career
or lifestyle option.
• Promote small business as a high priority to
government, industry leaders, key stakeholders
and the media.
• Provide easy access to the SBDC’s services
through enhanced market profile.
• Promote the benefits of business migration to
Western Australia and provide support before
and during relocation.
To improve the skills and knowledge base of
the small business sector
• Promote best management practice and
legitimate entrepreneurial behaviour to small
business.
• Identify and facilitate effective responses to the
emerging skill needs of small business.
• Promote the value of seeking appropriate and
timely professional assistance.
• Develop customised programs and services to
improve planning and decision making by small
business using leading edge technology and
delivery mechanisms.
To take a leading role in influencing the policy
and regulatory environment for small business
• Monitor and review current and proposed State
Government legislation and regulations that
impact on small business to ensure the needs
and characteristics of small business are taken
into account, red tape is reduced and the cost
of compliance is kept to a minimum.
• Consult with small businesses and their
representative organisations in the
development of policies and processes by all
tiers of Government.
• Increase the SBDC’s advocacy role in

representing the interests of small business to
all levels of Government.

Agency structure

Strategic Direction
2006-2010

Facilitate regional small business development
• Include an appropriate regional delivery
component in all relevant SBDC programs and
services.
• Develop strategic alliances with key
government agencies and other organisations
that have a regional focus or dimension.
• Support the continuing development of the
Small Business Centre (SBC) Network and
encourage SBCs to build local networks and
alliances that benefit small business in their
regions.
• Promote local SBCs as a source of information,
and guidance for small businesses.
• Recognise, endorse and utilise the ability of
the SBC network to deliver a range of small
business programs.
• Work in partnership with local government and
business organisations in the development and
delivery of programs and initiatives for small
business.
To drive small business growth
• Target businesses with aspirations and potential
for sustainable and profitable growth.
• Assist business to expand into new markets,
including export.
• Develop a suite of growth programs and
initiatives for established business.
To sustain a culture of achievement within
SBDC and leadership in small business
development
• Uphold core values of independence,
innovation and responsiveness within the
SBDC.
• Apply best practice principles (through an
entrepreneurial, performance focussed
approach).
• Commit to career progression through personal
development and skills enhancement relevant
to the needs of small business.
• Encourage staff teams to consider the current
and future needs of small business and the
SBDC and contribute accordingly.
9

organisational chart

As at 30 June 2009, the SBDC has 58 FTEs and is structured as follows:
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significant
issues and trends

The SBDC is astute in recognising and
addressing current and emerging issues and
trends which may impact on the small business
Your passport to doing
sector in Western Australia.  To help achieve the
Government’s goal of creating and supporting
cnfli
a viable and profitable business sector, the
following issues were identified for action.

wawp,

Join

Economic downturn
In response to the downturn in the Western Australian economy which
left many small businesses exposed and ill-equipped to respond to adverse
financial pressures, the SBDC has developed a new business assistance
program, BIZFit. This program will commence in 2009-10 and continue
throughout 2010-11 assisting business operators in remote, regional and
metropolitan Western Australia to improve business skills and increase the
resilience of small and medium sized businesses. The program involves a suite
of services including seminars, workshops, tailored education opportunities
and mentoring.
Attracting capital investment into the State

South Africa, China and the UK are key
markets for State sponsored business migrants.

The Business Migration Program is one of the State’s principal business
investment attraction initiatives, providing an important source of new capital
to support the continued growth of the Western Australian economy. An
ongoing program to attract sponsored and registered business migrants to
Western Australia has been undertaken throughout 2008-09. Those who
have finalised their investment proposals this financial year will exceed $214
million. Jobs generated are estimated to be approximately 428.
Skills requirements
The skills shortages prevalent during 2007-08 have eased, however current
economic conditions still present immediate and long-term challenges for
the State’s business sector in terms of labour supply. As this requires careful
planning for domestic and international migration programs, the SBDC will
establish a State Migration Taskforce comprising representatives from industry,
business associations and relevant State and Federal government agencies.
The Taskforce will develop a state migration strategy and policy framework for
the next five to ten years.
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significant issues and trends

Future migration activities
The State Migration Strategy will identify the skilled labour requirements of
Western Australia into the future. The strategy will include a review of the
Western Australian Occupations in Demand List and the strengthening of
State sponsorship requirements to ensure skilled migrants coming to Western
Australia are in demand and job ready.
To help expedite decision times for business and skilled State sponsorship
applications, the SMC is in the process of acquiring an electronic processing
system. It is anticipated that the new system will be operational in January
2010.
The SMC will also be introducing a nominal fee for State sponsorship
applications to help increase processing resources. A fee for business migrant
State sponsorship applications will be introduced on 1 July 2009 and a fee for
skilled migrant State sponsorship applications will also be introduced later in
2009.
Easing the compliance load for business
The direct and indirect costs of complying with Government regulations are
disproportionately higher for small to medium enterprises. The SBDC will
undertake a review of all Preliminary Impact Assessments accompanying
proposed new regulations to inform the Regulation Review Unit (RRU) of the
impact of these proposals on small business.
A detailed review and analysis of the online information currently available
to small businesses about local, State and Federal government business
licences was completed during 2008-09. An upgrade of this data was
also implemented to align Western Australia’s systems with those in other
Australian jurisdictions. To assist the delivery of online transactions and
reduce compliance costs, progress will be made towards integrating Western
Australia’s licence information into a national system.
Focussing on building Indigenous business

\iIJNGA DESIGNS

Opportunities exist within the Kimberley region for businesses to benefit from
local, State and Federal Government investment in tourism, infrastructure,
and community housing. The SBDC will introduce a Remote Area Business
program to provide locally co-ordinated and delivered services. This will
assist businesses to identify opportunities to build joint venture partnerships
and increase the capacity of the local economy to provide subcontracted
services and goods to large capital projects in the region. (For details of the
Indigenous pilot program see page 34.)

The SBDC is increasing services to assist
the development of indigenous businesses
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Executive Summary
Year’s Achievements

The SBDC is structured into four key areas; Small Business Services including the Small
Business Advisory Service, Business Information and Licensing Centre and the State
Migration Centre; Business Facilitation Services including the Small Business Centre
Network and Corporate Affairs and Communications; Policy, Planning and Stakeholder
Relations; and Corporate Resources.
This Executive Summary provides a synopsis of the achievements of the SBDC during 200809, grouped according to these four key areas.  The Report on Operations commencing on
page 17, provides further detail on these activities.
Agency Performance
The Customer Service Index, which measures the extent to which the SBDC and the Small
Business Centre Network satisfied customer enquiries and requests for assistance, provided
very positive results for 2008-09. The Customer Service Index rating of 92% in 2008-09
compares favourably against the scores achieved in the previous years (87% in 2007-08,
89% in 2006-07 and 2004-05, and 88% in 2005-06).
Customer Service Index

% of client responses

% client responses

Usefulness of the i
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Small business advisory service

Customer Service Index

Revenue from
87the sale of publications through the BILC totalled $81,420 for 2008-09.
In addition: 86
85
• 18,481 potential,
new or existing small business operators received business licence
84 kits,
information
2005-06
2006-07
2008-09
• 1,981 attended 2004-05
business skills
workshops,
and 2007-08
• 1,629 attended face to face appointments with SBDC business advisors.

If information / guidance benefite

% client responses

% client responses

During the year in review, around 17,000 potential, new or existing small business
90 the SBDC’s Business Information and Licence Centre (BILC) at 553 Hay
operators visited
Street, Perth.8911,476 accessed the 131 BIZ hotline number and 9,249 contacted the SBDC
by phone, letter
88 or fax. A further 1,559 enquiries were received via email.
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A survey on the usefulness of the information/guidance provided to clients, indicates that
a vast majority (91%) of clients found the information to be “very or somewhat useful” in

% of client responses

Usefulness of the Information/Guidance Provided

Very or somewhat useful

Neither or can’t say

Not useful

2008-09, up from 88% in 2007-08.
Note, see Performance Indicators section for full survey results

Online services continued to be a popular choice for potential, new and existing small
business operators with almost 250,000 visits to the SBDC website recorded during
2008-09.
In response to the needs of the small business sector, the SBDC’s unique range of online
small business networks have also continued to grow throughout the year in review.
Collectively, the Home-based Business Network, Young Business Network, Women in
Business Network, Small Business Exporters Network and Business Migrant Network have
grown their memberships to around 12,000 members.
After unavoidable delays early in 2008-09, the SBDC renewed its Service Delivery
Agreement with the Commonwealth Attorney General’s Department to provide business
advisory programs and services to potential and existing small businesses on the Indian
Ocean Territories of Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Islands.
The total number of client contacts for 2008-09 (200) is slightly less than the previous year
(236), as is the participation in workshops, however if the performance is assessed over the
actual seven month work cycle, the results are very strong.
Crisis Assistance for small business operators
In January 2009, the SBDC advisory team was called upon to respond to the needs of small
business operators in the Ravensthorpe/Hopetoun region following the closure of the BHP
Billiton Nickel mine.
The SBDC advisory team has provided critical small business advisory assistance to over 50
small business operators directly affected by the mine closure.
Over the ensuing months, the SBDC advisory team has provided ongoing support, and has
facilitated access to over $40,000 in professional services for local small businesses.
The SBDC was also called upon to undertake an urgent review of Multi-Purpose Taxis in
Western Australia, on behalf of the Department for Planning and Infrastructure (DPI).
The objective of the six week benchmarking project was to establish the viability of the
14

State Migration Centre (SMC)
During 2008-09, the SMC has exceeded all targets with 512 new business
migrants and 3,958 skilled migrants gaining State Sponsorship.  Over the
next two years, these business migrants will bring an estimated $877 million
in new capital into Western Australia for business investment, housing and
re-settlement costs.

SMALL

Executive Summary

multi purpose taxis. The outcome of this study will allow the DPI to implement
policy changes to benefit the operators and users of multi purpose taxis in the
future.

BUSiNESS
CENTRE

Also in the past twelve months, accessibility of the SMC services has been
significantly improved through the upgrading of the SMC website which has
consolidated three previous websites for business migration, skilled migration
and Living in Western Australia, in the one www.migration.wa.gov.au
Raising the profile of SBDC and small business in the
media
The SBDC has responded to the Government’s request to reduce advertising
costs by being more pro-active in using alternative opportunities to promote
its services to the small business sector.
One such alternative was the increasingly popular Facebook as a medium
to engage with WA business owners. The SBDC tested this alternative by
developing a pilot Facebook page. The SBDC’s profile grew quickly with
interest shown from business owners of all ages. Over three months, the site
gained 344 active members.
Cross-promotional media opportunities have also been maximised during the
year, by working with other State and Federal government departments to
promote their new products and services directly to the small business sector
via media releases, direct online marketing and free magazine and newspaper
editorial. Such promotions were undertaken with:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Department of Community Development
Western Australian Industrial Relations Commission
Australian Taxation Office
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Federal Department of Education, Employment and Workplace Relations
Department of Commerce, Office of Labour Relations

Promotion of the SBDC services was also achieved through sponsoring small
business events including business conferences, expos, award presentations
and economic forums.  In this way, the SBDC was able to promote its services
to over 4,000 members of the small business community throughout Western
Australia during 2008-09.
Reducing the regulatory burden on business
Another essential service provided by the SBDC is influencing the policy and
15
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regulatory environment for small business and wherever
possible, reducing red tape and compliance burdens.
This is undertaken by monitoring and reviewing current
and proposed legislation and regulations to identify
areas of duplication or unnecessary complication.

Collectively, the Centres undertook 40,595 client
sessions (up by 17%), resulting in 1,626 new business
start-ups (up by 6%). In addition, the Centres facilitated
the creation of 2,659 jobs (up by 1%) and hosted
10,970 workshop participants (up by 16%).

During 2008-09, the SBDC had a series of successes in
this area including;

The increase in workshop participants at the Small
Business Centres was 39 per cent over target for the
year and the overall improvement in the performance
of the network during 2008-09 is represented by an
increase in client contacts of 7,663.

• working to develop and streamline the business
registration process for Australian Business
Numbers and Business Names,
• collecting information from all government
agencies, on government services available for
small business,
• conducting a pilot program to explore new way
to develop Indigenous small business in Western
Australia,
• contributing to the development of a core model
national disclosure statement for retail tenancies,
• advocating on behalf of 60 small business
operators in their dealings with Government, and
• representing the Western Australian Government
on several federal small business working groups.
The SBDC also plays a key role in representing the
Western Australian small business sector in regard
to State and Federal government enquiries. During
2008-09, the SBDC provided submissions which helped
to ensure the short and long term impacts on small
business were taken into account in the development
or modification of legislation, policies, strategies and
regulations.
Small Business Centre Network
The 26 Small Business Centres located around the
State, are independent, community based organisations
providing locally delivered small business services.
In 2008-09, the SBDC allocated $2.974 million in core
operational grants to the network of Small Business
Centres. Of this, $2.185 million (73%) was allocated to
Centres in regional Western Australia.
Most likely as a result of increases in overall funding, the
operations of the Small Business Centre Network have
increased significantly.
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Small Business Initiatives Fund (SBIF)
The SBIF, administered by the SBDC, provides project
funding for the exclusive use of the Small Business
Centre Network.
This year, over $145,000 was approved to support the
delivery of locally developed initiatives by Small Business
Centres throughout the State. These projects include
a Managed Investment Scheme Assistance Package in
Albany and Manjimup regions, Carbon Sequestration
program in the Narrogin and the Indigenous Business
Heroes program in Broome.
Western Australian Regional Small
Business Awards (WARSBA)
The WARSBAs started in 2003 to recognise and
celebrate the achievements of successful small
businesses from Western Australia’s regional areas and
are now recognised as the major small business award
contest specifically for regional small businesses.
The SBDC provides over $60,000 per year in sponsorship
of local small business awards, with the winners going
forward to compete in the WARSBAs.
In 2008-09, the awards program attracted the
participation of over 170 small business entrants from
regional centres throughout the State.

Report on Operations
Core services

The SBDC addresses the Government’s goals of
financial and economic responsibility by efficiently
and effectively delivering its core services of free,
confidential and independent business advice,
information, and referral to potential, new and
established small business operators.  
Through its advocacy and policy making activities,
the SBDC also meets the Government’s goal of
reducing the regulatory burden for small business
operators.
The SBDC’s strategic focus on assisting business
operators in regional Western Australia through
the support of the Small Business Centre Network
and other regionally-based business projects is
also well aligned with the Government’s goal of a
stronger focus on the regions.
Since its inception in 2006, the State Migration
Centre (SMC) at the SBDC has fulfilled the
Government’s goal of encouraging economic
activity through the attraction and sponsorship
of business and skilled migrants to Western
Australia.
The following is a report on SBDC operations for
2008-09:
Business advice and guidance
The SBDC’s team of experienced business
advisors handle client enquiries by telephone,
e-mail and website contacts as well as personal
appointments and on-site visits to clients’
premises.

During 2008-09, 1,629 face-to-face
appointments between SBDC specialist business
advisors and small business operators were
conducted. This represents a 3.63 per cent
increase from last year, due primarily to additional
work carried out during the ‘crisis response’
consultations with small business operators
in Ravensthorpe and Hopetoun following the
closure of the BHP Billiton mine site (see details
on page 38).
Also adding to the overall number of business
advisory appointments were those held on
Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Islands under
the Service Delivery Agreement with the
Commonwealth Government (see details on
page 22).
In addition to the number of client appointments
increasing this year, a survey of SBDC services
undertaken for this report shows a marked
increase in the quality and usefulness of the
SBDC advisory services, as follows:
As can be seen below, overall client satisfaction
levels have increased from last year, some
significantly. There were significant increases
for “overall satisfaction with contact” (up 6%),
“benefit to business operations” (up 8%) and
“contributed to informed decisions on start up/
purchase” (up 6%). Only ‘Value to business’
has decreased (down by 2%) but this is not a
significant fall.

KPI Score
2009

KPI Score
2008

Information/advice was useful

91

88

+3

Satisfied overall with contact

95

89

+6

Value to business

76

78

-2

Benefit to business operations

81

73

+8

Contributed to informed decisions on start up/purchase*

72

66

+8

Saving in time/cost in obtaining licensing information and forms from
the one location

93

90

+3

Likelihood of using the service again

94

93

+1

Table1 - Performance Evaluation – Total Sample (weighted data)

Please refer to the Performance Indicators section of this report for all survey results.

Variance
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Specialist advisory service - Commercial tenancy
The SBDC acknowledges the significant impact a commercial lease has on
the profitability of a business, by providing a specialist Commercial Tenancy
Advisory Service. This service assists small business tenants, landlords and
other industry participants with information and guidance on the Commercial
Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreements Act 1985 and all aspects of negotiating
and leasing commercial premises.
In addition, the SBDC has produced a range of booklets covering the most
asked questions about leasing commercial premises and provides input on
policy matters and advice to the Minister on commercial tenancy legislation in
Western Australia.
Through day to day contact with small business tenants, landlords and other
industry participants, the SBDC specialist advisors keep abreast of commercial
tenancy market issues and trends. Through this exposure, the SBDC is well
equipped to ensure that small business tenants and landlords are represented
and their needs and views are heard.
In 2008-09, the Service assisted around 2,425 clients with information and
guidance on commercial tenancy issues with particular emphasis on starters’
advice, rent and rent reviews, termination of tenancies, operating expenses,
obligations in regard to repairs and maintenance, options and rights of
renewal. The SBDC also assisted 121 clients making applications to the State
Administrative Tribunal which provides dispute resolution through low-cost
mediation.
Specialist advisory service - Franchising
With over 70,000 franchise units currently operating in Australia, specialist
advice on franchising is in great demand. During 2008-09, Franchising
enquiries to the SBDC increased by 14 per cent from 266 to 303.
In addition to client assistance, the SBDC also contributes to State and Federal
enquiries on matters concerning franchising practices in Australia.
During 2008-09, the SBDC prepared two submissions to the Federal
Government’s Enquiry into Franchising, and have advocated for reforms
nationally through the Small Business Ministerial Council Senior Officials
group.
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In May 2009, the SBDC participated in the 2009 Franchising and Business Opportunities
Expo, providing advice and information sheets to over 230 potential small business
operators and provided speakers for the Franchise Council of Australia’s seminar for
intending franchisees, also held in May.
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During 2008-09 SBDC
delivered workshops and
presentations to an estimated
3,500 participants.

During 2008-09, the number of face-to-face appointments between SBDC specialist
business advisors and small business operators increased by 3.63% on last year.
Small business workshops
During the year ended June 2009, the SBDC presented 12 workshops each month on
various small business topics, to existing and potential small business operators. These
workshops were presented by experienced business facilitators using practical methods
which enable clients to understand and implement the principles provided.
The SBDC exceeded the annual target for workshop delivery with a total of 235 workshops
presented during the year.  The average class size was reduced by three from the previous
year, to eight participants per session.
However, during 2008-09 a total of 1,981 participants attended 235 workshops which
represents a decrease of 23% in attendance.  This decrease can be attributed in part to the
lack of advertising and promotion, and the rate of ‘no-shows’ also affected this total. Over
404 additional participants who had booked to attend a workshop, did not do so. “No
shows” account for around three quarters of the difference in workshop participants over
the past two years.
There was also an extremely low take-up of the complimentary workshop vouchers that the
SBDC sends as part of a welcome pack to all new businesses registering a business name in
the Perth metropolitan area. Over 13,286 free workshop vouchers were issued in 2008/09,
but only 2% of those were redeemed.
To address this issue of high no-show numbers, and the poor redemption rate of the
complimentary workshop vouchers, the voucher system has ceased. The SBDC is also
introducing a fixed price of $50 per person for all workshops and an automated email /
SMS reminder system.
To address the apparent drop in workshop attendances, the SBDC has also undertaken
a review of the workshop program to develop a new improved suite of workshops to be
introduced progressively over the next 12 months.
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This improved program will
include new topics, a new
delivery style, a revamp of
support materials and will
provide greater access to followup support. It is anticipated that
these measures will help increase
the participation rate of small
business workshops.  
A review of SBDC advertising
expenditure in the last half of
the year in review resulted in
a significant reduction in the
SBDC’s marketing efforts. This
review did impact on the overall
number of client contacts, via the
131 BIZ hotline number.
The hotline number 131 BIZ (131
249) allows clients to quickly
access information and connect
to a specialist advisor, or be
referred to other appropriate
assistance anywhere in the
State.  Enquiries to the 131 BIZ
telephone hotline during 200809 totalled 11,476, representing
an 8.5% drop in the number of
calls, compared to last year.

Accessing SBDC’s services
online
Throughout 2008-09, existing
and aspiring Western Australian
small business operators
continued to embrace SBDC’s
online services by accessing the
SBDC website 24 hours a day,
seven days a week.
During these times, clients
accessed online forums and
websites, joined online networks,
participated in small business
surveys, downloaded financial
tools, purchased small business
publications and booked into
small business workshops.
Online services continue to be
a popular choice for new and
existing small business operators.
During 2008-09, development
and further enhancement of
the SBDC websites and online
facilities continued:
An online workshop “Getting
your Business on the Web”
was developed to complement
the suite of existing online
workshops of Introduction to
Business Planning, How to Start
a Business and How to Buy a
Business.

Number of SBDC Clients
Number of SBDC Clients
Accessing Services Online
Accessing Services Online
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• The redevelopment of the
SBDC website has been
progressing throughout the
year in review, including
stakeholder and user
consultation, and formulation
and updating the website
content. The new site is due
for launch in the second half
of 2009.

06/07
06/07

07/08
07/08

08/09
08/09

Business Information
and Licence Centre (BILC)
The Business Information
and Licence Centre (BILC) is
a one-stop shop for licensing
requirements and assists in
streamlining the business startup process for small business
operators.
Written information on topics
of interest to small business is
provided in the form of free
business briefs, website content,
start-up packs with business
licence reports, and publications
for sale.   
The 2008-09 customer surveys
undertaken for this report
show increases in BILC clients’
perceptions across all indicators
except for “contributed to
informed decisions on start up/
purchase” which was down
slightly (3%) on last year.

KPI Score
2008

Variance

Information/advice was useful

95

86

+9

Satisfied overall with contact

95

93

+2

Value to business *

78

68

+10

Benefit to business operations*

80

77

+3

Contributed to informed decisions on start up/purchase*

65

68

-3

Saving in time/cost in obtaining licensing information and
forms from the one location*

93

90

+3

Likelihood of using the service again

95

93

+2
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KPI Score
2009

Table 3- Performance Evaluation – BILC Clients

*Note, these questions were not asked of all respondents

However, compared to last year’s report there
were significant increases for “information/advice
was useful” (up 9%) and “value to business”
(up 10%). All other attributes showed marginal
improvement.
The best selling publications in the BILC during
2008-09 were the SBDC produced manuals; Step
by Step Business Plan (708 copies), and A Guide
for Operating a Small Business (373 copies). The
BILC sold 3,340 publications valued at $81,420.
The BILC also offers information on:
• Business taxation (Australian Taxation Officer
in the BILC Mon/Tue/Fri)
• Small business employment (Labour Relations
Officer in the BILC Wed/Thur)
• Research information via IBISWorld.
• Licensing requirements
• Publications
• General small business enquiries (Walk-in
advisor available)
• Online Networks
During 2008-09, the BILC had 16,995 visitors,
representing a 9 per cent decrease from the
previous year.  

Business Licence and Information
Service (BLIS)
The Business Licence Information Service (BLIS) is
a user-friendly service for existing and prospective
small business operators seeking details of
Commonwealth, State and Local Government
Authority licences or permits that apply to their
operation.
BLIS is an online service available 24 hours a day.
During 2008-09 BLIS processed 18,481 enquiries
representing an increase of 2.8 per cent on the
previous year.
The majority of these licence enquiries (in
order of enquiry numbers) came from the local
government authority areas of Perth, Joondalup,
Stirling, Fremantle and Rockingham.  The five
most-often requested licences for 2008-09 were:
•
•
•
•
•

Australian Business Number
Business name registration
Company registration
GST registration
Occupational safety and health requirements

The licence enquiries relating to industry type,
indicated that for 2008-09, the highest interest
levels were for:
•
•
•
•
•

Café and restaurant
Hairdressing
Graphic design
Retailing - clothing
Consulting – general
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During 2008-09, the SBDC conducted a review
of its BLIS system to examine the integrity and
reliability of the information contained on
the system and to identify what is required to
transition the system to the proposed national
Business Online Service (BOS) as part of the
Council of Australian Government (COAG)
National Australian Business Number/Business
Name project.

Small business workshops

1,981

131Biz hotline number  

11,476

Enquiries by phone, letter and fax

9,249

Online enquiries

1,559

It was identified that significant data work is
required to enhance and expand the content of
this service to ensure language, data fields and
content depth is consistent with other SBDC
services.

Face to face appointments

1,629

Business Licence Information
Service information

18,481

Business Information and
Licence Centre visits

17,000

Options are currently being considered for this
upgrade work, with commencement expected
during 2009-10.

Australian Taxation Officer - clients

816

Small Business Employment Officer
– clients (since April ’09)

40

Small business taxation service

Revenue from sale of publications

$81,420

The business taxation information service,
provided by agreement with the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO), is available in the BILC to
provide free guidance on small business taxation
issues. During 2008-09, the ATO reduced its
number of days at the SBDC from four days per
week to three.   The number of clients visiting
the ATO officer this year was 816, with the
most popular topics for assistance being Goods
and Services Tax (GST) and Australian Business
Numbers (ABN).
Small business employment
advisory service
By arrangement with the Labour Relations Office
at the Department of Commerce, a Small Business
Employment Advisory service commenced in April
2009 with an education officer available in the
BILC two days per week. This free, walk-in service
assists in the delivery of employment information
to business owners operating in the State
industrial relations system. From April to June,
2009, 40 clients have accessed this service.
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Number of clients

Indian Ocean Territories
The SBDC has a Service Delivery Agreement (SDA)
with the Commonwealth Attorney General’s
Department (AGD) to provide programs and
services to potential and existing small businesses
on the Indian Ocean Territories islands of
Christmas and Cocos (Keeling).
The current SDA extends to 2012 and requires the
programs to be delivered by local representatives
with support from specialist small business
advisors from the SBDC.
To increase the relevance of, and overall
participation in the services offered, a new
approach to delivering the services was devised
in collaboration with the AGD Economic
Development Officer, on-island organisations, and
other Western Australian government agencies
with Service Delivery Agreements in place.  

Consequently, the total client contacts for 200809 (200) is less than the previous year (236),
and the total number of client appointments
and participation in the workshops is less than
expected. However, if the performance is assessed
over the actual seven month work cycle, the
results are very strong.  
During the past six months the SBDC has made
a conscious effort to build and strengthen the
SBDC brand in the Indian Ocean Territories.
This has been achieved through marketing and
promotion and also by working collaboratively
with government agencies, organisations, and key
individuals to deliver a 15 month workshop plan to
foster business development on the islands.
During June, the SBDC project coordinator spent
a total of 29 hours preparing for the initial series
of workshops which will be presented on-island
during July/August. Two workshops are being
offered; Business Planning and Customer Service,
on both Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) islands.
The current contract for the SBDC’s “IOT onisland representative” expired on 30th June 2009.  
This position has been advertised in both island
publications inviting applications from individuals
or organisations. A total of four applications were
received by the June 30 close date and these
applications are to be reviewed. A decision is
expected in early July 2009.

Tradestart contract
TradeStart is a joint SBDC and Austrade program
providing free personalised assistance for new and
occasional exporters to achieve export sales. The
program includes export coaching, identifying and
prioritising target markets, and on-the-ground
assistance in selected overseas markets.
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The five month delay in receiving and the
subsequent signing of the service contract from
the Attorney General’s Office impacted on the
SBDC’s ability to achieve the annual targets.
During this five month delay, while the SBDC
continued to service the region, it was at a
reduced capacity. The service was maximised once
the contract was finalised in November 2008.

During 2008-09, general export information and
guidance was provided to a total of 401 clients or
intermediaries. Since commencing delivery of the
service in 2002, the SBDC has signed 133 small
businesses onto the TradeStart program. Almost
50 per cent of these businesses have gone on
to export their products and/or services. In the
past 12 months, 21 new Tradestart clients have
achieved over $100,000 in export sales.
In October 2006 the SBDC’s TradeStart contract
was renewed, allowing SBDC to continue
delivering the Austrade funded program in Perth,
through to 30 June 2010.
Export Accelerator
The Export Accelerator program provides
specialised additional assistance to the SBDC’s
TradeStart clients. The program aims to accelerate
the exporting process, by providing professional
assistance (valued up to $2,500 plus GST per
client) for export training, export marketing
services, registration of intellectual property and
language translation.
During 2008-09, the Export Accelerator program
assisted three SBDC TradeStart clients, with
funding totalling $8,025 (including GST).
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The Women in Business Network
now has over 880 members.

Online networks
In response to increased demand for service
delivery via the Internet, the SBDC has developed
specialist online networks to cater to the interests
of five small business categories. They are the
Home Based Business Network (HBBN), Young
Business Network (YBN), Women in Business
Network (WIBN), Small Business Exporters
Network (SBEN) and the Business Migration
Network (BMN).
Membership is free and provides access to benefits
including online forums, online business guidance,
up-to-date news, free listing in the members’
directory, opportunities to attend networking
events, and links to relevant contacts.
During 2008-09, two combined events were
organised to improve business skills and provide
networking opportunities. ‘Putting Your Business
on Centre Stage’ covered the topics of marketing
and promoting your business and thinking
outside the square. ‘Adapting to Changing Times’
provided information on how to formulate a
strategic plan to survive in difficult economic
conditions and introduced new techniques for
making important decisions. The response from
participants to both functions was excellent.
• Home Based Business Network
The Home Based Business Network (HBBN) was
launched by the SBDC in June 2004. At the end of
June 2009, there were 5,722 registered members
of the network. Seven new success stories were
added to the Home Based Business Network this
year.
The four sections of the HBBN website
www.homebasedbusiness.sbdc.com.au cover
pre-start-up, starting, operating and growing
a home based business. A core feature of the
website is an interactive forum where home
based operators can exchange information and
ideas. During 2008-09 the Home Based Business
Network members formed a forum group called
the ‘Freelancers’. They meet regularly to network
in person and post ideas and information on the
interactive forum.
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During 2008-09, the SBDC assisted the City of
Swan Business Development Office to establish
a Home Based Business Centre in the Ellenbrook
Library. This library provides an area for local
small business operators working from home to
meet and provides an appropriate location to
display SBDC information resources. SBDC also
presented a workshop at the Ellenbrook centre
called ‘Getting Your Business on the Web’. In the
past year, ten small business articles have been
written for the Swan Business Development Office
newsletter.
• Young Business Network
As part of its commitment to youth enterprise
and increasing the business skills of young
entrepreneurs, SBDC established the Young
Business Network (YBN) in 2004 for entrepreneurs
aged 18-25 years. The network currently has
3,860 registered members.
Through its website
www.youngbusinessnetwork.sbdc.com.au
YBN provides access to online guidance, an
interactive forum for members, up-to-date
business information, inspirational success stories,
opportunities to promote their business through
the online member directory and invitations to
special inspirational and educational events.  Two
new success stories have been added to the New
Sensations section of the website.
To celebrate National Youth Week 2009, the YBN
formed a partnership with the City of Subiaco
to present “Make a Move into Business”, an
interactive workshop covering the essentials of
starting a business tailored particularly to potential
business starters aged 18 – 25 years.
To encourage University of Western Australia
Business School’s Economics and Commerce
Society (ECOMS) students to consider small
business as a career option, YBN representatives
attended the ECOMS Careers Fair. The SBDC also
presented a ‘How to Start a Business’ workshop
at Clarkson Senior High School for TAFE students
as part of the Clarkson Skills Passport program.
Financial sponsorship was provided for the Young
Achievement Australia (YAA) Program for the
business planning award.

The SBDC works strategically
with other organisations
to provide small business
information and guidance to
their members.

The SBDC has formed alliances with several
organisations including media, to facilitate
opportunities for members to obtain free
promotion of their business through newspaper
and magazine articles, television appearances, and
speaking engagements.
In recognition of Gen-Y’s reliance on technology
and social networking, the YBN was launched
on Facebook for a three month trial period. An
evaluation was conducted at the end of this
trial resulting in all of the SBDC networks being
converted into the WA Small Business Network, to
encompass all SBDC clients.
• Women in Business Network
The Women in Business Network (WIBN) was
launched in June 2008. WIBN delivers a broad
range of information, guidance, and support
to assist women in business. It also offers the
opportunity for members to attend networking
events to meet other women in business.
Since its inception, the WIBN has continued to
grow in strength and numbers. There are now 883
registered members.
In addition, and to fulfil our 2008-09 goal of
developing a mentoring program for women in
business, the program BizChat was developed.
BIZChat is a new concept designed to provide the
WIBN members with an opportunity to learn from
the experiences of other business women through
networking and to give and receive support
from their peers. The first BizChat group has
been meeting monthly and additional groups are
planned for 2009-10.
• Small Business Exporters Network
The Small Business Exporters Network (SBEN)
delivers a broad range of information, guidance,
tools, support, and contacts to assist first time
and emerging exporters to develop and maintain
successful export markets.

The SBEN website at
www.exporters.sbdc.com.au is the central
portal for small businesses to access the range of
services. The website features an online forum
which is free to join and allows network members
to interact with each other in sharing information
and knowledge.
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The objective of the SBEN is to assist in the
development of exporting skills and knowledge
among the small business sector in WA with a
view to stimulating export growth, particularly
from first-time exporters.
There are 562 members of the network.
Presentations
In an effort to achieve cost efficiencies, a
strategic decision was made to include more
cost neutral marketing activities. As a result the
SBDC has increased the number and frequency of
presentations made at small business events by
members of executive and staff.
During the year, SBDC staff and representatives
delivered over 24 presentations to more than
900 individuals from a variety of organisations,
educational facilities, government agencies, and
businesses. These included the Curriculum Council
of WA, the National Institute of Accountants,
Australian Security Industry Association, CPA
Australia, the Department of Commerce,
Department of Planning and Infrastructure,
Penhros College and UWA Business School.
The main topics covered were ‘An overview of
SBDC services’, ‘Managing in difficult times’, and
‘Starting a business’. Other topics included Crisis
response, Getting your business on the web and
The services offered by SBDC.
In addition, the SBDC Managing Director, Mr
Stephen Moir, and Chair of the SBDC Board,
Ms Patria Jafferies delivered 10 presentations
promoting the SBDC to approximately 600 people
during the 2008-09 year.
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To capture new markets during 2008-09, the
following innovative methods of promoting the
services of the SBDC were implemented.

• East Kimberley Aboriginal Achievement
Awards

Reaching out to Gen ‘Y’

• CCIWA Master Class, and

In March 2009, SBDC identified the increasingly
popular Facebook as a medium to engage
with WA business owners. To test the social
media network and determine its viability SBDC
developed a pilot Facebook group called the
Young Business Network.
The group sought to provide information about
SBDC services and events to the thousands of
active WA users and communicate with them in a
relevant and meaningful way.
The Young Business Network group page grew
quickly and business owners of all ages showed
interest in the group. In May 2009, the group
name was changed to the WA Small Business
Network to attract business operators of all age
groups to join the Network.
Since its inception the group has grown to 344
active members. The SBDC’s Facebook site has
enabled this group to meet new businesses and
clients, share their experiences and find new
market opportunities.
Small business sponsorships
By sponsoring small business events, the SBDC is
able to promote its services and products to many
existing and potential small business operators.
During 2008-09, the SBDC sponsored the following
events in regional and metropolitan areas:
• CCI WA Business Growth Summit
• CCI Federal Government Economic Briefing
• CCI SME Forum: Back to Basics
• Mid West Resources Forum
• Mid West Economic Summit
• UWA Career Expo – Economic and
Commerce Society
• Kimberley Economic Forum
• CPA Congress
• Franchising and Business Opportunities Expo

26

• The Family Business Australia Awards
• The Family Business Australia Conference.
These events provided the SBDC with the
opportunity to promote its services to over 4,000
members of the small business community
throughout Western Australia. At each event
attendees were provided with information about
the SBDC and its range of services.
During 2008-09, the SBDC also worked closely
with state and federal government departments
including Department of Commerce, the
Australian Tax Office and the State Library through
the BIZlink series of seminars. These seminars,
organized by the SBDC, aim to educate the small
business sector about the services that SBDC and
other agencies provide. Over 100 small business
owners attended the BIZLink seminars during the
year in review and received promotional material
about the SBDC services.
The SBDC has also continued its strong tradition
of supporting and celebrating the achievements of
small business through sponsorship of local small
business awards programs throughout Western
Australia.
During 2008-09, the SBDC supported over 20
small business category awards in both regional
and metropolitan programs, as well as culturally
specific programs such as the East Kimberley
Aboriginal Achievement Awards. In total over
4,000 people participated in these awards
functions and received SBDC promotional material
in addition to meeting SBDC representatives.
The SBDC sponsorship program is particularly
important in regional Western Australia. During
2008-09 the SBDC sponsored over 14 business
award programs coordinated by 20 Regional
Chambers of Commerce, across the State. (See
details of the WA Regional Small Business Awards
on page 51.)
These awards recognise the success of local small
business entrepreneurs, their contribution to the
economy and their communities.

State Migration Centre
The State Migration Centre (SMC) was formed at
the SBDC in 2006 to attract business and skilled
migrants to Western Australia, for new capital
investment and to address the State’s labour
shortage needs. The SMC meets the Government’s
goal of encouraging economic activity by:
• Promoting and marketing the State as a
leading migration destination for business
investment, employment and lifestyle;
• Assisting potential migrants with information
on visa criteria and living, working and
establishing a business in Western Australia;
and
• Supporting qualifying business and skilled
migrants with State sponsorship.
Demand for business and skilled migration
assistance and support reached record levels
during 2008-09 with the SMC responding to
47,340 enquiries. In addition, a further 651
appointments with migrants were conducted
during overseas marketing activities and at the
SBDC. This demand represents an increase of 75
per cent in client contacts over the previous year.
Key migration objectives
The three key objectives of the SMC for 2008-09
were to attract into Western Australia:
• 500 new business migrants,
• 2,000 new skilled migrants and
• $850 million in new capital investment.
These targets were all exceeded with the State
sponsorship and registration of 512 new business
migrants and 3,958 skilled migrants. In addition,
these migrants indicated in their applications
that they would collectively bring $877 million in
new capital into Western Australia for business
investment, housing and settlement costs.
China has remained Western Australia’s number
one market for business migration accounting
for around 25 per cent of all business migrants
coming to the State. It is a developing market
for skilled migration with the trend for young
Chinese to learn English and attain international
qualifications. China is also a prime export market
for Western Australian educational services.

South Africa has grown this year to become the
State’s second ranked business migration market
representing 22 percent of all business migrants
coming to Western Australia. South Africa is also
Western Australia’s third ranked skilled migration
market representing around 15 per cent of all
skilled migrants coming from outside Australia.
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state migration centre

The United Kingdom (UK) has traditionally been
a key business and skilled migration market for
Western Australia with the State having the
largest number of UK residents in Australia. The
UK is the first ranked skilled migration market
outside Australia with around 23 per cent, and
third ranked business migration market at 17
percent. (India is the major source country for
skilled migrants into Western Australia, however
over 80 per cent are studying within Australia at
their time of applying for State sponsorship.)
The SMC promotes Western Australia
internationally to potential business and skilled
migrants with a marketing program focusing
on three major elements of moving to the
State; strong economy, excellent business and
employment opportunities, and high quality
lifestyle.
During the year, the SMC participated in
international migration expos, WA Open Days,
seminars and appointments in prime markets as
well as potential developing markets. The twelve
month program included visiting prime markets
in China, Ireland, South Africa and the UK and
developing markets in Malaysia and Singapore.
In total over 40,500 participants attended the
combined international seminar/expo functions
and migration activities during 2008-09.
These international visits also provided
opportunities for SMC officers to train and update
WA Government Trade Office staff in Shanghai
and Kuala Lumpur on State sponsorship and the
business and skilled migration programs.
This initiative will, in due course, allow local office
staff to represent the SMC at events being held in
their countries to promote Western Australia as a
leading business and skilled migration destination.

27

report on operations

During 2008-09, staff of the Western
Australian Trade Office in Shanghai commenced
representing the SMC at migration seminars
hosted by migration agents around China,
and promoting Western Australia and State
sponsorship options to prospective business and
skilled migrants.
In the Perth office, the SMC also hosted three
delegations of business migrants from China.
Presentations on Western Australia were
provided to the delegation participants by State
government and industry groups including
Department of Commerce, Department of
Agriculture, Perth Education City, Western
Australian Chinese Chamber of Commerce.  
External meetings were arranged with the
Chamber of Commerce and Industry of WA, and
the Department of Mines and Petroleum.
To assist with the international promotion and
marketing of Western Australia, a “Destination
Western Australia Migration Assistance Pack“
was developed and produced. The pack
includes a promotional DVD featuring Western
Australia, SMC brochures and the Smart Move
Kit – an SBDC-produced manual of contacts and
information for new arrivals. This pack is cost
effective to produce and easy to distribute around
the world at migration events and through
Western Australian Trade offices.
Visa 457 Integrity Review
In April 2008, the Federal Minister for
Immigration and Citizenship, announced the
establishment of an independent integrity review
process to be conducted by former Industrial
Relations Commissioner Ms Barbara Deegan,
following concerns raised about the Subclass 457
visa program. Three issue papers were released
covering salary levels and labour agreements,
English language requirements, occupational
health and safety issues as well as integrity and
exploitation issues.
The SMC, representing the Government
of Western Australia, provided an acrossgovernment agency submission on each of the
issue papers and is currently participating on the
national Skilled Migration Consultative Panel.
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The Panel includes representatives from State
Governments in Queensland, Victoria and New
South Wales, peak employer and union groups
and welfare groups.
In November, 2008, Ms Deegan released her
final report on the Subclass 457 Integrity Review
which included 68 recommendations. The SMC
subsequently consulted with relevant State
agencies and submitted a consolidated State
response to the Skilled Migration Consultative
Panel.
In the first nine months of 2008-09 to 31 March
2009, 8,950 primary 457 visas were granted
for overseas skilled workers to fill nominated
positions in Western Australia. This figure
represents around 21 per cent of all 457 visa
grants for Australia and the State is the second
biggest user of the visa behind NSW with 31 per
cent.
The SMC and the State’s nine Regional
Development Commissions also assisted
employers locate skilled migrants into regional
areas of Western Australia by supporting 176
regional skill waivers for 457 visa applicants.
Improved accessibility of SMC services
During 2008-09, the SMC launched its new
website www.migration.wa.gov.au which
consolidated the Business, Skilled and Living
in Western Australia websites. Since going live
with the new site, excellent search rankings have
been achieved which are consistently higher than
other Australian State and Territory Government
migration agencies.
The site was ranked sixth for search on
‘migration’ among sites hosted in Australia.
This is the top ranking for any Australian State
or Territory Government migration agency.
Furthermore, the site was ranked fifth for a search
on ‘business migration’ and seventh for ‘skilled
migration’. It also ranked between tenth and 15th
for a search on ‘migration to Australia’ and was
consistently ranked first when the search phrases
included ‘WA’ or ‘Western Australia’.
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During 2008-09, the SMC registered and approved State sponsorship for 512 new business migrants.

Other major migration activities for the year
include:
• Hosting three Business Migrant Network
Functions to introduce business operators
from around the world now living in Western
Australia. The network is a valuable source
of business support to assist business
migrants establish and develop their business
operations in Western Australia.
• Distributing two newsletters nationally
and internationally to update and inform
migration agents, migrants and key
stakeholders about  the activities of the SMC
and the Western Australian Government
migration program.  
• Participating in four Commonwealth
and State Working Party meetings on
skills migration with the Department of
Immigration and Citizenship to assist with
policy development, strategies, initiatives and
the review of Australia’s skilled and business
migration program.
• Being represented on the national Skilled
Migration Consultative Panel to provide
advice to Senator Evans, Federal Minister for
Immigration and Citizenship on Australia’s
General Skilled Migration program including
the Visa 457 Review.
• Sponsoring and participating in the annual
Western Australian Chinese Chamber of
Commerce Migrant’s Night to promote the
services of the SMC and SBDC to the local
Chinese community.

Business migration
Despite uncertainty overseas in the wake of
the global financial crisis, Western Australia
has not experienced a reduction in demand for
sponsorship from business migrants.
Applications for sponsorship came from 38
countries with the prime markets being South
Africa, China and the UK. Applications from
South Africa and Iran have increased significantly
over the past 12 months due to the relationships
established with key migration agents in each
country.
The potential economic benefit to the State from
these migrants moving to Western Australia over
the next 24 to 36 months is expected to be:
• capital inflow of around $561 million
including over $203 million invested in
business and $36.75 million in State Treasury
Bonds,
• creation of some 872 new jobs across a wide
range of industries, and
• an estimated  53 new businesses exporting
Western Australian goods and services.
Business migrants who finalised their investment
proposals during 2008-09 have injected $214
million of capital into the State’s economy and
generated 428 new jobs. This capital inflow
represents an increase of 34 per cent on the
amount that these business migrants originally
proposed to bring into the State.
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The State sponsorship process for business
migrants was streamlined by removing
the requirement for business proposals
to accompany provisional business
applications. By removing this requirement
the Business Migrant Incentive Program
became obsolete so is no longer offered by
the SMC.
The SMC has been actively involved with
other State and Territory government
migration agencies and the Department
of Immigration and Citizenship (DIAC) in a
review of the business migration program
criteria and requirements.
As a result, a number of changes and
amendments to improve the integrity of
the business program have been discussed
and are likely to be implemented over the
next 12 months.
Skilled migration
Although the second half of 200809 saw an increase in unemployment
rates in Western Australia, the SMC has
experienced record levels of demand for
State sponsorship from skilled migrants.
In the main, the increased demand for
State sponsorship was from applicants
responding to changes in DIAC’s
processing policy.
These changes allow State sponsored
applicants to receive priority processing
which enabled them to migrate to Western
Australia faster than if they submitted an
unsponsored application.

The SMC has experienced
record levels of demand
for State sponsorship from
skilled migrants

d
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In response to the global economic
downturn and falling skills labour needs,
the SMC introduced a new policy in
the latter half of 2008-09 requiring
all graduate students from Australian
education institutions outside Western
Australia to obtain 12 months work
experience in Western Australia in a Skilled
Occupation before being able to apply for
State sponsorship.
This year the SMC approved State
Government sponsorship for 3958 new
skilled migrants against a target of 2,000
which represents an increase of 98 per
cent against target and a 137 per cent over
State sponsorship approvals for 2007/08.
Most skilled migrants coming to Western
Australia were from the UK, China, India
and South Africa with the balance from 79
other countries.
As well as addressing the skills labour
shortages in Western Australia, these
skilled migrants have the potential to bring
over $315 million into the State’s economy
to cover settlement, housing and living
costs. Migrants are particularly important
to the State because:
• more than half of the State’s annual
population growth is comprised of
migrants arriving from overseas; and
• migrants help to reduce the average
age of the population in the State as
most migrants coming to Western
Australia are under 45 years of age
with young children.

In 2008-09, the SMC Senior Migration Officer
located in the WA European Office in London
conducted a range of marketing activities to
promote business and skilled migration to Western
Australia. These included conducting seminars and
attending migration expos in Europe, providing
promotional material to migration agents, and
assisting WA private and public sector employers
with their recruitment activities.
In January 2009, the Senior Migration Officer also
took on WA Health recruitment duties after health
staff located in the WA European Office resigned
and were not replaced. These duties included
liaising with nurses and conducting pre-migration
interviews.
During the year in review, the migration seminars
were coordinated with other State and Territory
governments to explore new markets in Eastern
Europe.
A series of seminars were held in Poland with
encouraging results, particularly as it was the first
“Migration to Australia” promotion held in that
country.
A number of Western Australian private and
public sector employers use the UK and Ireland
as primary markets from which to source skilled
labour. The WA European Office in London has
been actively involved in assisting employers with
their recruitment activities in these countries
including arranging Western Australian Open Days
and facilitating participation at expos and specialist
migration events.
The Senior Migration Officer is also responsible
for handling media enquiries on migrating to
Western Australia. During the year, segments were
arranged in magazines, newspaper, radio and TV
promoting the economy, opportunity and lifestyle
of the State as a leading migration destination in
Australia.

Other major activities conducted from the WA
European Office included:
• Updating and networking with new migration
and relocation agents throughout the UK and
Europe on the WA migration program;
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WA European Office

• Representing Western Australia at migration
seminars and open days with European based
service providers including migration agents,
relocation agents and recruitment companies;
• Liaising with Federal Government agencies
throughout the UK and Europe on events and
activities; and
• Representing the WA Government at Federal
Government consultations on migration in the
UK.
Go West Now skills attraction
program
The Go West Now program was launched
in September 2006 in response to economic
forecasts predicting the State’s additional labour
needs would exceed 400,000 workers in the next
decade. A series of Expos were held in Sydney,
Melbourne, Brisbane and New Zealand with over
11,600 people registering for further information
on moving to Western Australia, and a total of
260,000 visiting the Go West Now website
The final stage of the Go West Now program was
undertaken in August 2008 with expos to promote
WA employment and lifestyle opportunities
to New Zealand job seekers held in Auckland,
Christchurch and Wellington.
A total of sixteen Western Australian employers
participated in the New Zealand Expos with
over 3,500 New Zealand job seekers visiting the
WA employment exhibition. The Go West Now
program was chosen as a finalist in the 2007
Premier’s Awards and again in the 2008 Premier’s
Awards.

The office recorded 840 client contacts for
assistance in 2008-09. In addition, the Senior
Migration Officer presented 18 seminars attracting
1,116 participants and attended 12 expos and
open days with a combined attendance of nearly
48,000 during the program year.
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Reducing the regulatory burden
on business

During 2008-09 the SBDC advocated on behalf of 60 small business operators in WA.

During the reporting period, the SBDC continued to take a leading role in influencing the
policy and regulatory environment for small business by monitoring and reviewing current
and proposed legislation and regulations. This helps to ensure the needs and characteristics
of small business are taken into account, red tape is reduced and the cost of compliance is  
minimised.
Through the following range of initiatives, the SBDC has worked collaboratively with state
and federal agencies to address red tape issues impacting on the small business sector
in Western Australia and to achieve the Government’s targets of reducing the regulatory
burden on the private sector.
Australian Business Number/Business Names Registration project
Throughout 2008-09, the SBDC has worked closely with the Australian, State and Territory
governments to develop a national system to streamline business registration processes
which will provide businesses with a seamless, single online registration system for both
Australian Business Numbers and business names.
A significant milestone for the project was the development of an inter-governmental
agreement for the establishment of a national business names register and referral of
powers for business name registration to the Commonwealth Government. This initiative
will lower the cost of registering a business name and allow a business name to be
applicable in all states and territories, therefore avoiding the need for multiple registrations
and enabling the entire process, including payment, to be undertaken online.
Mapping Project – small business consultations
To determine the strategic direction of small business services in Western Australia, the
SBDC developed a program to map all policies, programs and services that impact on the
sector, currently provided by Government agencies.
32

This report will assist agencies in developing or
reviewing policies, programs and services that
affect small business and provide tailored and
effective customer service, reduce duplication and
unnecessary compliance.
Commercial tenancy legislation
During 2008-09, the SBDC participated in a
Working Group on Retail Tenancy Legislation,
which was established under the auspices of
the Small Business Ministerial Council (SBMC) to
report on options for greater national consistency
and regulatory harmonisation in retail tenancy
legislation.
The Working Group is currently progressing two
projects; the first to develop a core model national
disclosure statement and the second to collect
data on retail tenancy enquiries, complaints and
dispute resolution.
The SBDC is also pursuing further amendments
to the Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops)
Agreements Act 1985 as recommended by the
Review Committee in its report to the Government
in 2003.
To this end, the SBDC will continue working with
the Department of Commerce, the Administrator
of the Act, to provide input into the draft
amendment bill.
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Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) Inter-governmental cooperation
During 2008-09, the SBDC worked cooperatively
with the Australian Bureau of Statistics to evaluate
the availability of data sources that reliably
identify the characteristics of small business and
the contribution made by the sector to the State
economy.
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Information was collected from 113 Government
agencies and a final report provided to the
Government and participating agencies.

The SBDC engaged an outposted officer from
the Western Australian office of the Australian
Bureau of Statistics for three months to develop a
methodology to measure the economic value of
the small business sector at the state and national
level. The intent of the project was to explore
whether current ABS data and other published
sources could be utilised on an ongoing basis to
provide an assessment of the economic activity
and contribution of the small business sector.
At the end of the outposting, the ABS was able to
provide the SBDC with a comprehensive report on
the availability of relevant data, although it was
acknowledged that many gaps still existed. The
SBDC has used this information to inform work
at the Small Business Ministerial Council level to
improve the collection of small business statistical
data.
Business Online Services project (BOS)
Throughout the year in review, the SBDC has been
working collaboratively with Commonwealth,
State, Territory and local governments to progress
the BOS project. This project will bring Australia
closer to a seamless national economy for business
and maximize the capability of governments to
deliver world class services to the business sector.
In line with a Council of Australian Governments
(COAG) directive, jurisdictions have been
collaborating to deliver nationally coordinated
online services to business. The BOS system which
will be launched in stages, will provide online
access to licensing and registration information
across all levels of government, allow application
forms to be completed online, forms to be prepopulated with information and payments to be
made electronically.
During 2008-09 the SBDC assisted around 2,425 clients with
information and guidance on commericial tenancy issues.
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It will also allow businesses to subscribe to
information and reminder services, and maintain
an online account to track their interactions with
government.
The BOS will eventually replace the SBDC’s
Business Licensing Information System (BLIS).
Small Business Ministerial Council
(SBMC)
The SBMC, which is made up of Small Business
Ministers from all Australian, State and Territory
governments, promotes a nationally consistent
and coordinated approach to small business policy
and its development.
In 2008-09, the SBDC led and/or was proactively
involved in initiatives to strengthen small business
development by Indigenous Australians, improve
retail tenancy laws across Australia, progress
the Australian Business Number/Business Name
registration project, provide relevant information
for small business on the impact of climate
change, and develop national small business
statistical priorities.
These initiatives, and others, will be considered by
Small Business Ministers at the SBMC meeting in
Darwin in July 2009.

Indigenous business assistance
During 2008-09, the SBDC undertook a
pilot project to support the formation and
development of Indigenous small business
enterprises in the north of Western Australia.
Empirical data from this pilot Indigenous Small
Business Development Program provided
information on the process and challenges
involved in providing training and skills
development to Indigenous small business
operators.  
The SBDC also led the national Indigenous Small
Business Working Group, which reports to the
Small Business Ministerial Council. This Group
reviewed issues and experiences encountered
across Australia and identified areas where
greater inter-governmental cooperation at a
national level could deliver better outcomes for
this priority group.
Findings from these projects will facilitate the
establishment of an Aboriginal Business Unit
within the SBDC during 2009-10.  Funding for
this unit was allocated in the 2009-10 State
Budget and the unit will commence operations
early in the second half of 2009.
Submissions to Government

Other national regulatory reforms

Enquiries

In the past year, the SBDC has been involved in
a number of WA inter-departmental working
groups currently progressing national regulatory
reform initiatives on behalf of COAG.  The SBDC’s
principal role has been to ensure the needs and
concerns of the small business sector in Western
Australia are addressed in the:

A key role for the SBDC is to advocate on behalf
of small business, by making submissions to
Government enquiries and reviews.

•

•
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Implementation of a National Trade
Licensing System which will initially
cover seven occupational areas – set to
commence on 1 July 2012, and
Introduction of a national system for the
registration of Personal Property Securities,
including a single online register of
securities held against personal property
- due to commence in May 2011.

During 2008-09, the SBDC developed the
following submissions which helped to ensure the
short and long term impacts on small business
were taken into account in the development or
modification of legislation, policies, strategies and
regulations:

• Parliamentary Joint Committee on
Corporations and Financial Services Enquiry
into the Franchising Code of Conduct
• Building a Better Planning System – Review
of the State’s Planning System
• Input into the Western Australian
Government’s submission to Australia’s

• Review of the Export Market Development
Grant Scheme
• Review of the Electronic Funds Transfer Code
of Conduct
• Review of the Do Not Call Register
• Perth Coastal Planning Strategy
• Town of Vincent proposed Leederville
Masterplan Development
Small Business Advocacy Service
To assist small business operators experiencing
difficulties in dealing with all levels of government,
the SBDC provides a one-to-one advocacy service.

Ministerial Link Forums
An important function of the SBDC is to monitor
the sector for small business issues and trends via a
range of consultation processes.  One such process
is the Ministerial Link Forum which provides the
Minister for Commerce with the opportunity to
meet directly with small business operators from
various industries or localities.
During 2008-09, a series of forums were held
around the metropolitan area with representatives
of small businesses in the retail, baking, cleaning,
building and construction industries. Issues
raised during these forums were investigated
by the SBDC with follow-up provided to forum
participants and the Minister.

During 2008-09, the SBDC successfully advocated
on behalf of 60 small business clients in Western
Australia. These cases included dealings with the
Department of Commerce on new Motor Vehicle
Licensing requirements, the Department of Racing,
Gaming and Liquor regarding liquor licence
applications, other agencies regarding headworks,
licencing and planning approvals, and local
governments on planning, parking and signage
matters.

Small Business Impact Statements

Red Tape Reduction Group

During 2008-09, the SBDC collaborated with the
Department of Health, Department of Consumer
and Employment Protection and the Office of
Energy to develop effective Small Business Impact
Statements as part of their proposals to Cabinet.

Through its extensive network of small business
contacts throughout Western Australia, the SBDC
collaborated with the Department of Treasury and
Finance to provide support to the Government’s
Red Tape Reduction Group.
Over a period of four months in early 2009, the
SBDC organised for the Group to meet with over
100 small business operators and business and

The SBDC also plays an important role in assisting
other agencies to meet the Government’s objective
of reducing red tape, by examining submissions
to Cabinet for their impact on, or potential
consequences for small business. Where necessary,
the SBDC assists agencies introducing legislative
changes to develop transition and implementation
measures that will reduce the potential for
detrimental impacts on the sector.

Amongst its many comments on submissions to
Cabinet, the SBDC provided input in areas such as
the proposed changes to the Western Australian
Industrial Relations System and extended Retail
Trading Hours.

industry representatives in 14 regional areas and

Regulatory impact assessments

four metropolitan areas of the State.

To further strengthen the Government’s red
tape reduction process, the SBDC worked
collaboratively with the Department of Treasury
and Finance to support the development of
gatekeeping mechanisms and the Regulatory
Impact Assessment process (which will replace the
Small Business Impact Statement process).

In October 2009, the Group will be reporting back
to the Government with options to reform and
reduce the regulatory burden on business and the
community.
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Future Tax System Review
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The Regulatory Impact Assessment process and
accompanying agency guidelines will take effect during
2009-10 and will ensure the impacts of new regulatory
proposals on small business will be considered at
Cabinet level.
Ready Response Network
With around 1400 active small business members, the
Ready Response Network allows the SBDC to consult
small business operators on topical issues of importance,
via regular online questionnaires. This immediate
feedback mechanism enables the SBDC to “keep a
finger on the pulse” regarding current and emerging
issues affecting the sector.
During 2008-09, the SBDC polled the Ready Response
Network on issues including:
• small business expectations for 2009
• the impact of the global financial crisis on small
business in WA
• climate change
• small business exemption to the Federal
Government’s Do Not Call register
• the impact of the Federal Government’s stimulus
package, and
• banking practices and access to finance.
Information gained through Ready Response Network
polls is considered in policy formulation, and used for
media opportunities.
Regional Round Up
To support the Government’s goal to focus on the
regions, and the SBDC’s strategic goal to facilitate
regional small business development, the SBDC
maintains an up-to-date profile of small business
issues in regional Western Australia through a regular
consultative program. This includes consulting with
regional organisations such as Small Business Centres
and Regional Chambers of Commerce.
Throughout 2008-09, data has been regularly collected
and collated into a central report which allows the
SBDC to keep abreast of the issues and trends affecting
regional small businesses.
This information is used to advise the Minister and to
assist in the formulation of policies impacting on small
businesses in regional areas.
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Online newsletter ‘InSight’
An important role for the SBDC is to act as the central
online contact point for small business operators,
business associations and industry organisations.
Throughout 2008-09, the SBDC produced and
distributed editions of the online newsletter InSight, to
115 organisations. InSight is designed to keep business
associations and industry organisations up to date
on legislative changes affecting the sector, as well as
business initiatives, events and programs offered by the
Federal and State governments.
Raising the profile of SBDC and small
business in the media
A key strategic goal of the SBDC is to promote
understanding and recognition of the contribution of
small business to the Western Australian economy, with
an emphasis on news media.
During 2008-09, the SBDC succeeded in establishing a
sound reputation with local, state and national media
outlets as a reliable source of relevant, timely small
business facts and statistics as well as contacts for small
business story leads.
In addition, negotiations with media outlets has resulted
in the SBDC placing regular free editorials in newspapers
and industry magazines promoting the services of the
SBDC, and profiling success stories of clients.
An ongoing relationship with The West Australian
Newspaper has seen the small business supplement
SME Pathways grow from a two page insert in 2007,
to a 24 page magazine lift-out. This magazine features
success stories and articles on the SBDC and its services
and small business clients of the SBDC. SME Pathways
is produced quarterly and is distributed to over 300,000
readers.
The SBDC is also regularly featured in news stories in
the Australian Financial Review, The West Australian,
WA Business News, Community News and regional
newspapers as well as international migration
newspapers and magazines. During 2008-09, the
SBDC was also featured in three television programs on
Channels 7 and 9, commenting on small business issues
and trends.
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By arrangement with the Labour Relations Office at the Department of Commerce,
SBDC now offers a free small business employment advisory service.

During 2008-09, a pilot program of media training was provided in-house to a small group
of staff members.
The objective of the training was to prepare staff members for opportunities that may
arise to promote the SBDC on radio, television or in print and for possible use on the SBDC
website.
The SBDC has this year relied significantly on the use of free editorial articles in magazines,
television programs, business newsletters and newspapers to promote the services of the
Corporation.
Media releases continued to be the primary source of news leads for small business issues
with the SBDC’s Ready Response Network surveys providing timely and topical research
material on matters of importance to the small business sector.
During 2008-09, Ready Response Network survey data on the following topics were
released to the media:
• the impact of the small business expectations for 2009,
• the effect of the global financial crisis on small business in WA,
• climate change,
• the small business exemption to the Do Not Call Register,
• the Federal Government’s stimulus package, and
• the treatment of small business by banks and other lenders.
In addition to the production and distribution of media releases, the SBDC increased its
media exposure during 2008-09 through cross-agency collaborations.
The SBDC managed the following media strategies to cross-promote the projects of other
government agencies to the small business sector, including:
•
•
•
•
•

Department for Community Development - Working with Children Check program.
WA Industrial Relations Commission – Workplace Mediation Service
Australian Taxation Office – Fuel Tax Credit awareness program
Department of Premier and Cabinet – Ravensthorpe/Hopetoun Crisis Response
Federal Dept of Education, Employment and Workplace Relations – Fresh Ideas,
Work/Life Balance
• Department of Commerce, Office of Labour Relations – Mature-aged workers.
• Department of Commerce, Office of Labour Relations – Industrial Relations Advisory
Service.
The SBDC is also regularly featured in the industry magazines of Lotterywest, Australian
Career Practitioner and the WA Institute of Conveyancers.
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Ravensthorpe / Hopetoun Crisis

• One-off funding for the RRCC

Assistance program

In April 2009, SBDC commenced distribution of
the ‘Professional Service Vouchers’ as outlined
in the recommendations. These vouchers have a
maximum value of $3,300 (inc. GST) per business
and were designed to allow small business
owners affected by the closure of the BHP mine
to have access to professional legal, accounting,
and financial planning advice.

In January 2009, BHP Billiton announced an
indefinite suspension of the Ravensthorpe Nickel
Operation. This resulted in significant job losses
which had an immediate, negative impact on the
small businesses operating in the region.
At the invitation of the Ravensthorpe Regional
Chamber of Commerce (RRCC), the SBDC sent
a team to visit the local business community,
and work with individual small business owners
affected by this decision. During this visit, the
SBDC team provided critical small business
advisory assistance to over 26 small business
owners and met with a range of government and
local representatives.
The following week, SBDC sent a second team
to the affected area. During the four day visit
the SBDC advisory team provided assistance to
a further 20 small business owners.  They also
attended community meetings in Ravensthorpe
and Hopetoun.
Legal support was arranged and a legal team was
flown to Ravensthorpe for client appointments.
The legal team assisted 15 individuals and small
business owners in the community in relation to
potential claims against BHP.
In addition to this, SBDC provided ongoing
remote support via email, telephone, and the
internet.
To date, a total of 61 confidential client sessions
have been delivered directly to small business
owners affected by BHP’s decision to suspend
operations in Ravensthorpe.
A Trip Report was prepared outlining twelve
recommendations for Government consideration.
The total cost of these recommendations was
$350,000 and was to be disbursed by SBDC over
12 weeks. The recommendations included:
• Access to specialist advisors
• Commercial legal practitioner
• Commercial accounting practitioner
• Funding for the professional services ‘voucher
system’
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Media outlets were notified about the availability
of the vouchers and all Ravensthorpe and
Hopetoun businesses in the SBDC database were
e-mailed information. Two local Small Business
Centres (Great Southern and Esperance) agreed
to assist by conducting a brief needs assessment
with businesses and to provide a local distribution
point.
To date 24 vouchers have been issued to 18
businesses, representing $40,684.10 in services.
Of the vouchers issued, the majority were for
businesses located in Hopetoun and the balance
in Ravensthorpe. Accounting advice represents
the biggest demand. To date 14 of the 24
vouchers have been returned to SBDC by the
service providers for processing.
Department of Planning and
Infrastructure - Multi-Purpose Taxi
Review
The SBDC works collaboratively with other
Government agencies on small business related
issues. In 2008-09, SBDC undertook a six
week benchmarking project on behalf of the
Department for Planning and Infrastructure (DPI)
into Multi-purpose taxis.
The objective of the project was to establish the
ongoing business viability of Multi-purpose taxis
in Western Australia involving the establishment
of baseline information and benchmark
comparisons, developing a financial modelling
tool through interviewing operators and analysing
their financial records.
The results of the study will allow the DPI
to implement policy changes to benefit the
operators and users of Multi-purpose taxis.

Small Business Centre Network
Small Business Centres are independent,
community based organisations providing locally
delivered small business services. In support of the
Government’s goal to provide greater focus on
service delivery and economic development
to improve the overall quality of life in
remote and regional areas, the SBDC supports
26 Small Business Centres (SBCs), 19 of which are
located in regional Western Australia.
In 2008-09, the SBDC allocated $2.974m in core
operational grants to the Small Business Centres.
Of this, $2.185m was allocated to regional
centres, representing 73 per cent of total funding.
This funding facilitates easy access to free small
business advice and guidance to potential and
existing small business operators in regional
Western Australia.
Total client contacts at the SBCs are up by
17 per cent on last year. During 2008-09, the
SBC Network undertook 40,595 client sessions,
resulting in 1,626 new business start-ups.
The Network facilitated 2,659 people into jobs and
hosted 10,970 workshop participants.
The increase in workshop participants is 39 per
cent over target and the overall improvement in
the performance of the network during 2008-09 is
represented by an increase in client contacts
of 7,314.
Small Business Centre Network
increases for 2008-09
Client sessions

up 17%

Assisted start-up companies

up 6%

Jobs created

up 1%

Workshop participants

up 16%

It is estimated that these increases are the result
of the changes in global economic conditions,
especially in the last part of the second and
third quarters of 2008-09 when the economic
downturn saw many small business operators
contacting the SBCs to seek assistance, particularly
as cashflow declined.

Reports from Centre Managers indicated that
the increase in new business enquiries is partly as
a result of workers from the resource industries
being made redundant from their jobs and seeking
information on starting their own businesses.   
The increased participation in small business
workshops is also due to business starters looking
to increase skills and existing business owners
taking advantage of quieter times to attend
training workshops.
Regional migration activities
The SMC works closely with Western Australia’s
Regional Development Commissions (RDCs) in
attracting skilled migrants into country areas
by providing regional skill waivers for visa 457
applicants and certification for Regional Sponsored
Migration Scheme (RSMS) applicants. During
2008-09, the SMC approved 176 applications for
regional skill waivers from the State’s RDCs and 70
applications for certification under the RSMS.
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The SMC continued to support Western Australian
abattoirs by providing access to the State’s Labour
Agreement for the meat Industry. The Labour
Agreement allows meat industry companies with
abattoirs in Western Australia access to overseas
skilled migrants to meet their ongoing labour force
needs. Three new companies were given access to
the agreement this financial year.
Small Business Initiatives Fund (SBIF)
The SBIF provides a project funding source for the
exclusive use of the Small Business Centre network.
The fund, administered by the SBDC, enables centres
to identify local business needs, develop project
proposals aimed at addressing those needs and
deliver business development initiatives throughout
their region.
During 2008-09, the SBDC provided $145,156 to
support ten programs in regional areas and two
metropolitan projects, designed to assist specific
business groups.
With funding allocated through the SBIF, the
following projects were conducted by Small
Business Centres throughout the State:
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• Managed Investment Scheme (MIS)
Assistance Package : Small Business
Centres, Great Southern and Warren
Blackwood
$50,000 was allocated to assist the small
businesses affected by the collapse of
Managed Investment Schemes (MIS) in the
Great Southern and Warren/Blackwood
regions.
Preliminary estimates of the number of
small businesses affected by the collapse
is approximately 1,800 which represents
between 15 and 50 per cent of all small
businesses in these communities (15 per
cent in Albany, 20 per cent in Manjimup,
40 per cent in Cranbrook and Franklin and
50 per cent in Mt Barker).
The support program will run for six
months and includes free, confidential
advice and guidance tailored to the
individuals requirements and a specialist
mobile facilitator to visit clients in the outer
areas of the regions. Funding was also
made available to cover subsidised access
to legal and financial advice.
• Frontline Manager : Small Business
Centre, Gascoyne
In partnership with the Australian Institute
of Management, this course was delivered
to business owners and operators in the
Gascoyne region via a series of modules
over a nine day period. Participants
were required to successfully design and
implement a workplace based project
including the modules of leadership,
team effectiveness, project management,
customer service, professional development
and safety in the workplace.
All participants, including 12 from
Carnarvon, four from Denham and one
from Exmouth, provided excellent feedback
on the effectiveness of the course.
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• Carbon Sequestration Program : Small
Business Centre, Wheatbelt South
This program was organised in response
to a need identified by a local Shire office
in the Narrogin region. Funding was
granted to the Small Business Centre to
provide information and training on carbon
sequestration, particularly in relation to
timber plantations.
Local farmers were being encouraged
to form partnerships with large timber
corporations, to use carbon trading as an
income source, to the advantage of the
larger corporations but to the possible
detriment of local shires and small
businesses.
Twenty-eight participants attended the
program, with the participants benefited
by being better informed by the broader
information provided.
• Indigenous Business Heroes – Small
Business Centre, West Kimberley
This program was developed to assist
Indigenous small business operators in
the preparation and submission of their
entries for the category of Best Indigenous
Business for the 2009 Broome Small
Business Awards.
The Broome Small Business Awards were
the first to have an Indigenous Business
Award category and this program
encouraged Indigenous business operators
to enter the awards, with the result of
gaining exposure through mainstream
business celebrations, build the capacity
of their businesses through networking
and improving two-way communication of
business ideas and management methods.
Three Indigenous businesses from Broome
and three more from Kununurra took part
in this program and have since gone on to
successfully enter their local Small Business
Award competitions.

Awards
The Western Australian Regional Small Business
Awards (WARSBA) program started in 2003 to
recognise and celebrate the achievements of
successful small businesses from Western Australia’s
regional areas.
The SBDC provides over $60,000 per year in
sponsorship of local small business awards
throughout the State as well as over $25,000 in
prizes for the WARSBAs.

The 2008 WARSBA were held at the Burswood
Entertainment Complex, with 270 guests from
around the State. The Guests of Honour included
the Minister for Commerce and representatives
from chambers of commerce, business associations
and small business finalists and winners.
Mr Hugh Gallagher from the Regional Chambers
of Commerce was the 2008 inductee into the
Regional Small Business Hall of Fame in recognition
of his outstanding contribution to regional small
business.

To be involved in the WARSBAs, business owners
and operators are required  to have won an
award at their local level.  This helps to encourage
regional small businesses to participate in, and
support, their local awards programs, conducted
by regional chambers of commerce and Small
Business Centres.
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Through the WARSBAs, the SBDC seeks to;
• build and strengthen its relationship with key
stakeholders such as regional chambers of
commerce, business associations and regional
development commissions,
• communicate with regional small businesses
to build awareness of and increase usage of
SBDC services, and
• encourage regional small businesses to access
the services of the Small Business Centre
Network.
The SBDC has also succeeded in establishing a
benchmark event that all regional chambers and
small businesses aspire to.

Minister for Commerce, the Hon. Troy Buswell,
attended the 2009 WA Regional Small Business
Awards.

This year, businesses from the Pilbara, Peel,
Goldfields, Esperance, Mid West, Great Southern
and Kimberley regions took part in the WARSBA
program.
In 2008-09, the WARSBAs program attracted the
participation of over 170 small business entrants
from regional centres throughout the State.
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Other Financial Disclosures

Training and Professional

The Corporate Resources team assists in the
achievement of the Government’s goals through
the provision of a comprehensive corporate
resources function comprising:

Development

• financial management including budgeting
and accounting services;
• human resource management;
• online services management;
• information technology infrastructure
management;
• facilities management including assets, fleet,
accommodation and procurement;
• records, library and information management
services: and
• administration.
Internal Audit
The SBDC’s Internal Audit program is contracted
out and for 2008-09 was undertaken by the firm
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Internal Audit
program comprised one (1) compliance audit
of the Corporation’s financial, accounting and
administrative systems.
The objective of the Internal Audit function is to
ensure that the SBDC satisfies the compliance
requirements of the Financial Management Act
2006 and applicable Treasurer’s Instructions. The
audit program seeks to provide assurances to
the SBDC Board regarding the quality, reliability,
adequacy and integrity of the processes of internal
control, compliance and reporting within the
following key areas:

Throughout the year staff attended a variety of
training and development programs delivered
both in house and externally. Programs focussed
on professional and personal development,
leadership, risk management, networking, policy
development and computer software training.
A successful staff development day involving all
staff of the SBDC was held with an emphasis
on organisational culture, teamwork and
communication.
Accountable & Ethical Decision Making
Training
As part of the SBDC’s commitment to fulfilling
the directive in the Premier’s Circular 2008/06,
all employees received training on Accountable
& Ethical Decision Making. The training was
developed and designed around six modules
which mirror the categories of conduct in the
Conduct Guide developed by the Office of
the Public Sector Standards Commission. The
categories are:
• Personal behaviour,
• Communication and official information,
• Fraudulent and corrupt behaviour,

• Revenue and accounts receivable;

• Use of public resources,

• Expenditure and accounts payable;

• Recordkeeping and use of information, and,

• Payroll;

• Conflicts of interest.

• Fixed assets; and

The major outcome of the training was that
employees gained the necessary depth of
knowledge and understanding to be able to
choose the most appropriate course of action in
a situation, where the right choice may not be
obvious or clear.

• Purchasing and contracting.
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The SBDC aims to develop and maintain an
ethical, professional and skilled workforce and
is committed to the provision of suitable, timely
and relevant development opportunities for all
staff. Secondments and acting opportunities are
encouraged where appropriate to enhance skills
and career development.

The SBDC continued to provide Cross Cultural
Awareness training throughout 2008-09 with
a further six (6) employees attending the
course. The program is designed to provide a
better understanding of the cultural diversity of
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultures:
Graduate Program
The SBDC has continued to support a structured
graduate program with the graduate recruit
undertaking various core business and operational
activities through a series of rotational placements
throughout the Corporation. These placements
provided policy and program development skills
and an awareness of issues affecting the small
business sector.
Development Conversations
During the reporting period, the SBDC
performance management system was
reviewed and resulted in the establishment and
implementation of a Development Conversation
system. This process provides opportunities
for staff and supervisors to have an exclusive
and dedicated time to talk about expectations,
achievements, requirements and the SBDC’s
culture and values. The process is designed to
facilitate two way conversations where both
parties participate in order to get the most out
of the time spent in discussion. The outcomes
of the Development Conversations are used to
highlight training needs and gaps, development
opportunities and future planning.
Occupational Safety and Health
The SBDC is committed to the wellbeing of all
employees and provides a safe and ergonomically
sound work environment. It is the Corporation’s
policy to comply with all provisions of the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984,
Regulations and Code of Practice.

To achieve this objective the full cooperation of
every member of staff is essential. To provide a
positive occupational safety and health culture,
all new staff including contractors from agencies
undergo a full induction that includes an
awareness of:
• The OS&H Management System and policy;
• Hazard identification and accident/incident
reporting;
• Location of first aid kits;
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Cultural Awareness

• Contact names of First Aid Officers;
• Injury Management System and policy; and
• Evacuation procedures.
Consultative Mechanisms
A consultative process is provided through “All
Corporation” meetings, team meetings, workplace
inspections and by individual incident reporting.
The Occupational Safety and Health Management
System, Injury Management System and related
policies are made available to all staff via the
extranet.
Injury Management System – The continued
implementation of SBDC’s injury management
system, in accordance with the Workers’
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981,
has ensured rehabilitation of injured employees
to full duties. This is achieved through structured
return to work programs in consultation with
external specialists.
The SBDC’s Injury Management System has been
developed to support the Corporation’s Injury
Management Policy and is fully compliant with the
requirements of the Workers’ Compensation and
Injury Management Act 1981.

The objective of the SBDC is not only to prevent all
work related injury and illness, but to also create
a working environment which maximises the
effectiveness of each employee.
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Lost Time Injury Rates for SBDC
Indicator

2007-08 Actual

2008-09 Target

2008-09 Actual

Achievement

Number of  fatalities

0

0

0

0

Lost time injury/disease
(LTI/D)

2

0 or 10%
reduction

1

Down 1 from 2

Lost time injury/disease
severity rate

0

0 or 10%
improvement

1

Up 1 from 0

Indicator

2008-09 Target

Percentage of injured workers
returned to work within 28 weeks

100%

100%

Percentage of managers trained
in occupational safety, health and
injury management responsibilities.

Greater than or equal
to 50%

*approx. 25%

* Training will be undertaken so that managers
meet the training requirement in occupational
health and safety over the next three years.
Human Resource Management Information
System
During the 2008-09 year, the SBDC transitioned
to the Talent2 Human Resource Management
Information System (HRMIS). Talent2 supplies
payroll/HR software to the Western Australian
Government and currently provides a service to
46 prime customers through the Common User
Contract (CT127800) – known as the “Head
Agreement”.
Prior to this transition, the payroll service to staff
was outsourced through an external provider. The
majority of Human Resource functions, such as
maintaining personnel and leave information and
meeting legislative reporting requirements, were
carried out by various manual systems. Due to the
growth of the Corporation, the amount of time
taken to maintain these systems had become time
inefficient with human resource staffing being
tied to processing activities rather than focussing
on strategic human resource issues.
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2008-09 Actual

Employee Health Promotion
As part of the SBDC’s employee wellness
program, influenza vaccinations are provided to
staff at no cost. Many staff members used this
service as an initiative to reduce absenteeism
from work due to the flu and other cold-related
illnesses.
In light of the swine influenza, the SBDC
also developed and implemented a Business
Continuity Management (BCM) Influenza
Pandemic Plan 2009. The plan outlines strategies
to ensure the health and wellbeing for all staff
through the Australian phase six of an influenza
pandemic. These include:
• Effective communication,
• Workplace health;
• Flexible work practices; and
• Staff absenteeism.
The plan also addresses the provision of key
services in the event the phase is upgraded to
phase 6b.

Charities and Community Support
Throughout the year the SBDC continued to
organise and encourage staff to donate to the
Australian Red Cross Blood Service. Staff also took
the initiative to raise money by holding a Casual
Dress Day, where employees were encouraged
to donate money to support the victims of the
Victorian bushfires.
Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP)
The SBDC is committed to the advancement
of Indigenous small business in Western
Australia. The SBDC Reconciliation Action Plan
is our commitment to assisting Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people achieve economic
independence through owning and operating
small and medium sized enterprises. Our RAP has
been developed by involving staff from all areas of
the Corporation, specifically those who have direct
involvement in the promotion of Indigenous small
business.
In summary, SBDC’s reconciliation initiatives
include:
• Providing Cross Cultural Awareness training to
all staff.
• Developing and implementing policy and
protocols for acknowledging traditional
owners.
• Building effective relationships with
Indigenous small business operators through
the Indigenous Small Business Development
Pilot program.
• Establishing through the WA Small Business
Regional Awards an Indigenous Small Business
Award.

Governance Disclosures
Enabling Legislation
The Small Business Development Corporation
Act 1983 makes provision for the establishment
of the Small Business Development Corporation
to encourage, promote, facilitate and assist the
establishment, development and carrying on of
small business in the State and for incidental and
other purposes.
SBDC Board
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The SBDC has continued to offer an Employee
Assistance Program (EAP) through the ORS Group.
The EAP provides access for all employees and
their immediate family to confidential professional
counselling services for any personal and work
related issues.

The SBDC is governed by a Board, drawn from
the private sector under the auspices of the Small
Business Development Corporation Act 1983. The
eight-member SBDC Board meets on a monthly
basis to consider issues relevant to the direction
and operation of the Corporation. For membership
as at 30 June 2009 please see page 6.
Functions of the Board
As the SBDC’s governing body, the Board has
responsibility for performing the functions set out
in the Small Business Development Corporation
Act 1983.
The SBDC Board has four strategic roles:
• direction of the organisation;
• determination of standards;
• coordination of planning, policies, and
decision-making frameworks; and
• acting in an advisory capacity to the Minister,
the Government and other agencies.
Operational roles of the Board include:
• setting strategies;
• focusing on client service and customer needs;
• striving for organisational best practice and
compliance with standards; and
• delegation of operational decision-making to
officers within the SBDC.
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Attendance at Meetings
Board Member

No of Meetings 08/09

Actual Meetings Attended

Ms Patria Jafferies

11

11

Ms Larissa Beeson

11

10

Mr Geoff Brayshaw

11

10

Mr Chris Jones

11

11

Mr Paul Niardone

11

10

*Ms Caterina Prodonovich

10

10

Mr Stuart Thompson

11

8

Mr Stephen Moir

11

11

* Ms Prodonovich took up her appointment in September 2008.

Terms of Appointment
Members Current as at 30 June 2009
Name

Initially Appointed

Mr Patria Jafferies (Chairman)

30/04/2007

30/04/2010

Ms Larissa Beeson

31/12/2004

31/12/2010

Mr Geoff Brayshaw

31/12/2004

31/12/2009

Mr Chris Jones

31/12/2004

31/12/2009

Mr Paul Niardone

30/04/2007

30/04/2010

Ms Caterina Prodonovich

12/05/2008

31/05/2011

Mr Stuart Thompson

31/07/2003

30/06/2009

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
The SBDC takes out Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance through Riskcover to provide cover
for members of the Board. The policy has an
Indemnity Limit of $10,000,000. For 2008-09 the
SBDC paid an amount of $10,458.36 towards the
annual premium with individual Board members
also making a contribution.
OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan
The SBDC has in place a plan that includes
strategies to address barriers and impediments to
access to the Corporations services and products.
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Term Expires

Achievements against the Disability Services Plan
Outcomes during the past year include:
Outcome 1. People with disabilities have the
same opportunities as other people to access
the services of, and any events organised by
the SBDC.
Achievement:  The SBDC continues to make
greater use of the internet and its websites
for the provision of information and services.
This includes business licences, booklists and
procedures for ordering books including online
purchasing, and an email facility for requesting
specialist small business information and
guidance. Contractors who provide a service on
behalf of SBDC have been surveyed to ensure

In achieving this outcome, we also provide
translators and interpreters for clients, requiring
the services of SBDC, where English is not their
first language or they are hearing impaired.
Outcome 2. People with disabilities have the
same opportunities as other people to access
the buildings and other facilities of the SBDC.
Achievement: The accessibility needs of people
with disabilities are a major consideration as part
of any redesign and refurbishment programs for
office premises.
Outcome 3. People with disabilities receive
information from the SBDC in formats that
enable them to access the information as
readily as other people are able to access it.
Achievement: The SBDC continues to ensure
that information about services and programs
use clear and concise language and are available
in accessible formats. All of our websites have
been developed to meet W3C (Web Content
Accessibility Guidelines) compliance.
The SBDC has four (4) specialised online networks
- Home Based Business Network, Young Business
Network, Small Business Exporters Network and
Women in Business Network, designed to provide
members with the opportunity to communicate
with, and learn from other members of the
networks via the online forums. A number of
small business information workshops have been
developed as online learning tools and in CD
format. The workshops allow users convenient
access from their home or office computer.

Outcome 4. People with disabilities receive
the same level and quality of service from
SBDC staff as other people.
Achievement: All SBDC staff are informed of
their obligations and responsibilities regarding
equal opportunity and the Disability Access and
Inclusion Plan 2007 - 2011, and are encouraged to
be proactive in addressing improvements that can
be made to access for all individuals.
Outcome 5. People with disabilities have the
same opportunities as other people to make
complaints to the SBDC.
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that they conduct their business in accordance
with the Corporation’s Disability Access and
Inclusion Plan 2007 - 2011. In addition, the SBDC
is an affiliate of the Companion Card Program
which promotes the existing right of people with
a disability to fair ticketing. Under the program,
the SBDC will issue a second ticket to a cardholder
who requires the assistance of a companion to
attend an SBDC event or activity, when booking or
purchasing a ticket.

Achievement: The SBDC website includes a
forum for users to provide feedback on services
and facilities and to have grievances and
complaints managed in accordance with our
Complaints Management Policy. In addition,
regular surveys of clients are conducted to elicit
information and feedback regarding the provision
of our services.
Outcome 6. People with disabilities have
the same opportunities as other people to
participate in any public consultation by the
SBDC.
The SBDC continues to promote consultation
opportunities through a variety of small business
forums, networks and through the Small Business
Advocacy Service.
Equal Employment Opportunity
The SBDC, in consultation with staff, has
developed the EEO Management Plan 2007–2011.
The plan sets out to eliminate any discriminatory
practices and to ensure equality of employment
opportunity.
SBDC staff are our lifeblood and through their
enthusiasm and commitment provide outstanding
services to the small business sector. In recognising
that our staff have a diverse mix of talents, skills,
backgrounds and perspectives, we are committed
to making the best use of this diversity in the
delivery of our services.
To ensure staff have a point of contact to raise
grievances, one member of staff has received
Grievance Officer training provided by the Equal
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Opportunity Commission. The course outlined
mediation and investigation processes that can be
utilised as necessary.
Access to flexible work options including part
time, job share and phased retirement have
provided increased opportunity for women
and other diversity groups to achieve work
life balance. The provision of equitable career
development opportunities for all employees
includes acting positions, secondments and
career-enhancing projects across all sections of
the Corporation.
Recruitment advertisements are worded in such a
way as to encourage a broad selection of diverse
applicants and together with improved access
to job application kits, has ensured equity for all
potential applicants. In addition, the induction
process for new employees includes awareness
of EEO principles, their legal obligations and
relevance to the workplace.
Recordkeeping Plan
The SBDC’s Recordkeeping Plan ( RKP ) was
approved by the State Records Office in 2003
and is currently under review. This is due to be
completed within the 2009/2010 financial year.
The RKP review will look at new processes,
policies, procedures and control mechanisms
for the Corporations records following the
implementation of the Electronic Document
and Records Management System (EDRMS) and
changes in the business conducted. The review
will also look at the introduction of compliance
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relating to the creation, capture and archiving of
electronically stored records within the EDRMS.
Review of the efficiency and effectiveness of the
SBDC’s recordkeeping systems is continuing as
the full implementation of the EDRMS progresses.
Changes have already been made to some areas
of the Corporation’s recordkeeping practices, and
this has resulted in considerable benefits for those
business areas in the overall discoverability and
management of records created and captured.
During 2008/2009, the SBDC maintained an
effective recordkeeping training program,
including comprehensive instructions for all new
employees and contractors. Training is conducted
at induction for all staff in the use and processing
of records for the new EDRMS and is used as a
timely reminder to staff on standards of records
management that need to be complied with in
accordance with the State Records Act 2000. The
effectiveness of recordkeeping training is subject
to ongoing review and evaluation. Records
Management staff continued their professional
development through the attendance at
information networking opportunities as well as
EDRMS and information management training.
Public Sector Standards in Human Resource
Management and Ethical Codes
The SBDC has complied with section 31 of
the Public Sector Management Act in the
administration of the Corporation’s human
resource management practices relating to the
public sector standards and codes of ethics and
conduct.

Significant action taken to monitor and ensure compliance

Public Sector Standards

• Information about Public Sector Standards is included on the
SBDC extranet and within induction material.
• Suitable training is provided to persons participating on
recruitment panels to ensure compliance with relevant Standards.
• Recruitment Guidelines are provided to all panel members.
• Transactions are reviewed internally as a quality assurance process.

• One (1) breach claim –
Recruitment, Selection and
Appointment Standard. No breach
found and claim dismissed.
WA Code of Ethics
• Nil reports of non compliance
with WA Code of Ethics

SBDC Code of Conduct
• Nil reports of non compliance
with SBDC Code of Conduct

• WA Code of Ethics is included on SBDC extranet and within
induction material.
• SBDC revised and updated policies on Conflict of Interest,
Corporate Credit Card Use, External Employment, Offer and
Acceptance of Gifts and Customer Service.
• All staff attended Accountable & Ethical Decision Making
Training.
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Compliance issues

• SBDC’s Code reflects the WA Code of Ethics and Conduct Guide.
• SBDC Code included on the extranet and within induction
material.

Advertising Expenditure
In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, set out below are details of expenditure incurred
during the 2008-09 financial year in relation to:
Market research organisations:
Patterson Market Research
Advantage Communications and Marketing

$33,948.20
$12,027.40
$21,920.80

Advertising agencies:
Marketforce Express
Media Decisions
Rare Creative
Adcorp Marketing
Hogan Media Services

$262,670.36
$394.54
$176,514.77
$70,192.44
$3,461.61
$12,107.00

Total Expenditure for 2008-09:

$296,618.56
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Legislation Impacting on Activity
In the performance of its functions, the SBDC
complies with the following legislation:
• Business Names Act 1962
• Child Support (Registration and

Collection) Act 1988 (Cth)
• Copyright Act 1968 (Cth)
• Corporations (Western Australia) Act

1990
• Corruption and Crime Commission

Act 2003
• Criminal Code Act Compilation Act 1913
• Disability Services Act 1993
• Electoral Act 1907
• Equal Opportunity Act 1984
• Evidence Act 1906
• Evidence Act 1995 (Cth)
• Electronic Transactions Act 2003
• Financial Management Act 2006
• Freedom of Information Act 1992
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cth)
• Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth)
• Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Cth)
• Industrial Relations Act 1979
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• Minimum Conditions of Employment

Act 1993
• A New Tax System (Goods and Services)

Act 1999 (Cth)
• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
• Pay-roll Tax Act 2002
• Pay-roll Tax Assessment Act 2002
• Privacy Act 1988 (Cth)
• Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972
• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
• Public Sector Management Act 1994
• Small Business Development Corporation

Act 1983
• Spam Act 2003 (Cth)
• State Records Act 2000
• State Superannuation Act 2000
• State Supply Commission Act 1991
• State Trading Concerns Act 1916
• Superannuation Guarantee

(Administration) Act 1992 (Cth)
• Taxation Administration Act 2003
• Treasurer’s Instructions 804 and 805
• Workers’ Compensation and

Rehabilitation Act 1981
Cth = Commonwealth Acts

Government policy
requirements

Corruption Prevention
The SBDC is committed to the highest level
of integrity, ethics and equity and corruption
prevention forms part of our overall risk
management strategy as an important element of
internal control. Policies that support and promote
ethical behaviour by staff in the conduct of their
duties are subject to ongoing review and include:
• Code of Conduct
• Complaints Management
• Public Interest Disclosure
• Acceptance and Registration of
Gifts and Benefits
• Acceptable Use of the Internet
Staff and members of the Board are briefed
on a range of statutory and administrative
requirements relating to ethical conduct including
the requirement to declare conflicts of interest. A
comprehensive induction program, the inclusion
of the policies on the extranet and regular internal
communications also seek to ensure that all staff
are aware of and understand their responsibilities.
As part of our commitment, training in
Accountability and Ethical Decision Making was
provided to all staff during the year.
Sustainability
The SBDC continues to progress the targets
and priority areas of the Sustainability Action
Plan developed in 2004. In addition to the
achievements highlighted throughout this report,
the Corporation has continued to progress the
plan through:

• Compliance with the Department of Treasury
and Finance policies and guidelines for the
procurement of goods and services including
the use of Common Use Contracts;
• Working collaboratively with other public
and private sector partners in the delivery of
services to the small business sector;
• Engaging stakeholders and inviting feedback
on SBDC performance through annual
surveys;
• Ensuring that strategic planning focuses on
the long term viability of the small business
sector;
• Ensuring building works comply with the
relevant Department of Treasury and Finance
(Building Management and Works) Office
Accommodation Policy 14 - Sustainability and
Government Accommodation;
• Ensuring our current fleet of motor
vehicles, as they are replaced, meet the fuel
efficiency emission targets as set by the WA
Government Fleet Policy and Guidelines;
• Managing waste through actively encouraging
the use of paper recycling bins and the
recycling of toner cartridges;
• Achieving reductions in non-transport related
energy use In accordance with the Energy
Smart Government policy.
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Government policy requirements

Publications
The Small Business Development Corporation
(SBDC) publishes a wide range of books and
periodicals, in both hard copy and electronic
format. These publications are listed below:
• Annual Reports – Each financial year
the SBDC produces an Annual Report to
highlight its business and financial activities.
Electronic (PDF) copies of the reports from
1999 onwards can be downloaded from the
SBDC website.
• Books – Hard copies of the SBDC books can
be purchased via the SBDC online Bookshop
or directly from the Business Information and
Licence Centre (BILC).
• Media Releases – The SBDC regularly
produces media releases to inform the small
business sector on topical issues. Media
releases from 2001 are available to view on
the SBDC website under “Publications”.
• Small Business Briefs – Small business
briefs are a series of information sheets
available in hard copy format at no charge
from the Business Information and Licence
Centre (BILC). Small business briefs are also
available in electronic (PDF) format from the
SBDC Website and can be downloaded to
either view or print:
• Small Business Facts Sheets – The SBDC
published the Small business fact sheet on an
annual basis and gave a summary of key WA
small business statistics. Issues from 2001
to 2004 are available to view on the SBDC
website under “Publications”. For current
statistics, see replacement publication Small
business stats.
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• Small Business Stats – The Small
business stats replaces the Small business
fact sheets and is published on an annual
basis to give a summary of key WA small
Business statistics. Issues from 2006 are
available to view on the SBDC website under
“Publications” or can be collected in hard
copy from the Business Information and
Licence Centre (BILC).
Small Business InSight – The SBDC regularly
publishes a newsletter titled Small business
inSight to highlight the latest products,
services, government policies, and legislation
of interest to small businesses in Western
Australia. Hard copy issues can be obtained
from the Information Coordinator.
Western Australian Government
business migration update – The SBDC
regularly publishes the Western Australian
Government business migration update
to provide sponsorship criteria changes,
forthcoming migration events and latest
statistics. Issues from 2005 are available
to view on the SBDC website under
“Publications”, on the business migration
website, or can be collected in hard copy
from the Information Coordinator.
Western Australian Government migration
update – The SBDC publishes the Western
Australian Government migration update
regularly to provide sponsorship criteria
changes, forthcoming migration events
and latest statistics. Issues from 2007 are
available to view on the SBDC website under
“Publications”, on the business migration
website or can be collected in hard copy from
the Information Coordinator.

MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Stephen Moir
Vivienne Sullivan
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Director Corporate Resources

Ray Buttsworth
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Stephen Edwards
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Pauline Ng
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Caitlin Bethune (Secondment)
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Michelle Rosenberg

Information Technology Coordinator

Ehab Haddad
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Website Coordinator (part time)
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Government policy requirements

Staffing – positions as at 30 June 2009

Policy PLANNING AND STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS
Director  Policy Planning & Stakeholder Relations

Juliet Gisbourne

Principal Policy Officer

Martin Hasselbacher

Policy and Business Liaison Officer

Jenni Collins (Part Time)

Policy and Business Liaison Officer

Caragh Waller (Part Time)

Policy and Business Liaison Officer

Paul Wallace

Policy and Business Liaison Officer

Lauren Stone

Policy and Business Liaison Officer

Brooke Ambler

Graduate Officer

Michelle Kua

Administrative Support Officer

Diane Rix

Business Facilitation Services
Director Business Facilitation Services

Bruce Macfarlane
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Small Business Centre Program Management
Manager Small Business Centres Program

Mark South

Small Business Centre Liaison

Lesley Dan

Small Business Centre Liaison

Noel Ibbotson

Administrative Support Officer

Liddell Williams

Corporate Communications
Media Officer

Diane Graham

Corporate Communications Officer

Pia Duxbury  

Marketing Officer

Marina Males

small business service
Director Small Business Services

Jacky Finlayson

Small Business Services
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Manager Specialised Services

Janene Troy

Small Business Services Officer

Richelle Moran

Small Business Services Officer

Brian Robertson (Part Time)

Small Business Services Officer

Bob Galloway (Part Time)

Small Business Services Officer

Jim Mouzalidis

Small Business Services Officer

Mike O’Donnell

Small Business Services Officer

Rosina Pedalina

Small Business Services Officer

Russ Davis (Part Time)

Small Business Services Officer

Kym Francesconi

Small Business Services Officer

Frank Green (Contract)

Small Business Services Officer

Brian Childs (Contract)

Small Business Services Officer

Robyn Binks

Small Business Services Officer

Mary Prosser

Small Business Services Officer

Alison Wood

Administrative Support Officer

Dianne Calhoun

Administrative Support Officer

Rebecca Hill (Part Time)

Administrative Support Officer

Tina Morton (Part Time)

Administrative Support Officer

Daniel Gladden

Manager State Migration Centre

Bruno Delfante

Senior Migration Officer (Business)

Tricia Cook

Senior Migration Officer (Business)

Elizabeth Rossi

Senior Migration Officer (Skills)

Claire English

Migration Officer (Business)

Lucy Hamilton

Migration Officer (Skills)

Sue Harcus

Migration Officer (Skills)

Randall King

Migration Officer (Skills)

Radmila Poznovia (Contract)

Migration Officer (Skills)

Tracy Terrill (Contract)

Migration Marketing Officer

Joe Hernandez

Government policy requirements

State Migration Centre

Business Information and Licence Centre
Coordinator

Susan Crockford

Customer Service Officer Workshops

Naomi Ferdinands

Customer Service Officer

Brad Hearne

Customer Service Officer

Joanne Smith

Migration Administration Officer

Carol Ghandour (leave without pay)

Seconded to WA European Office, London

Genelle Surace (seconded)
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independent Audit opinion

Auditor Genera'
iNDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION
To the Pa ,-Iianient of %'estern Ausli-alia

SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CoRPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
I have audited the accounts, financial statcmcnts, controls and key performance indicators of the
Small Business Development Corporation

The financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the Income
Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Notes.

The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency.

Corporationts Responsibility for the Finaudal Statements and Key Performance Indicators
'the Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statemenic in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Treaurcr's Instructions, and the
key perfommnce indicators. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and key
performance indicators that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies: making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances; and complying with the Financial Management Act 2006 and
other relevant written law.
Summary of my Role
As required by thc Auditor General Act 2006. my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statcmcnts. controls and key performance indicators based on my audit. This was done

by testing selected samples of the audit evidence, I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. Further
information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Rcfer

vdit,wa.gov.auipubsiAuditPracStatcmcnt FcbO9.pdf.
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and
key performance indicators is error free. The term reasonahle assurance" recognises that an
audit does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures
should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adsersely affect the decisions of users
ol' the financial statements and key performance indicators.

Page I of 2
4 Floor OPa$ KO*a 2 HaveloOr sree1 iNeO Penil 6005 'lex*ari Auslralla Tel: O 9222 7500 Fax; 05 t1322 56e'4
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Small Ruiness Development Corporation
Financial Statemenl. aini Ke Performance Indicators for the ear ended 30 June 2009
Audit Opinion
In my opinion,
(1) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly (he financial

position of the Small Business Development Corporation at 30 June 2009 and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Trcasurcr's Instructions;

the controls exercised by the Corporation provide reasonable assurance that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property, and th incurring of liabilities hate been in accordance with legislative
provisions: and

the key performance indicators of the Corporation are relevant and appropriate to help
users assess the Corporation's perfbrmanc-e and fairly represent the indicated
performanec for the year ended 30 June 2009.

COLIN slURPHY
AUDITOR GENERAL
IX September 2009

Page2 o12
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Certification of
Performance Indicators

CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

We hereby cerftfy that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Small Business Development
Corporations performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Small Business
Development Corporation for the financial year ended 30 June 2009.

P. JAFFERIES
CHAI RMAN

S MOIR
MANAGING DIRECTOR

September2009
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The Small Business Development Corporation (SBDC) operates under the broad high level government
strategic goal “to deliver a strong economy that delivers more jobs, more opportunities and greater
wealth to Western Australia by creating the conditions required for investment and growth”.  To meet
this goal, SBDC’s mission is “to create opportunity and wealth for small to medium sized businesses in
Western Australia”.
SBDC’s outcome and output that link with this government goal are shown in the table below.
Government Goal

Desired Outcome

Services

Creating conditions that foster a strong
economy delivering more jobs, opportunities
and greater wealth for all Western
Australians.

Development of new and
existing small business in
Western Australia.

Information, guidance, referral
and business development
services.

In 2008-09, SBDC achieved this desired outcome by:
The provision of specialised information, referral and business facilitation services for the effective
development of enterprises in Western Australia.
The following outlines the key effectiveness and efficiency indicators that have been developed to
measure SBDC’s performance.
Key effectiveness indicators
The effectiveness of the SBDC in meeting its outcome is measured by:
• Client surveys with key stakeholder groups, namely:
- Small business owners - those who are already operating their own business; and
- Small business starters - those planning or contemplating operating a business in the future.
• The impact of migration to the State, namely:
- New businesses planned by business migrants; and
- Migrants with specialised skills planning on entering WA.
Client opinion of the services provided by SBDC
The SBDC provides a range of small business services to those in business as well as those planning on
starting or buying a business.  (Refer Report on Operations for details of these services).  The SBDC also
provides core business facilitation services in major business centres through the provision of funding
for 26 Small Business Centres (SBCs) across the State.  The effectiveness of small business services is
measured by client surveys of those who have contacted the SBDC and SBCs during 2008-09.
Key effectiveness indicators used to measure SBDC’s performance in achieving its desired outcome are
subject to regular review, with indicators refined to reflect the services delivered to key client groups.
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Key effectiveness indicators are:
•

Usefulness of the information and guidance provided (asked of all client contacts surveyed);

•

Contribution the service made to an informed decision to start or buy a business (asked only of those
who were planning or contemplating starting or buying a business);

•

The extent the information or guidance benefited the operations of the business (asked of all business
clients who had met with a SBC manager or with a SBDC adviser); and

•

The value of the guidance or information received (asked of all business clients who had met with a
SBC manager, had visited the Business Information and Licence Centre or met with a SBDC adviser).  

The measures reported below are based on two telephone surveys conducted during 2008-09 of random
samples of SBDC and SBC clients.  They have been carried out by an independent market research company
to ensure maximum objectivity1 .  Results from an evaluation of all those who had attended workshops at
the SBDC, and a survey of those who had visited the SBDC or Business Licence Centre websites were also
taken into account where appropriate.
The effectiveness measures reported below combine the client scores of both the SBDC and the SBC
network.  High customer satisfaction with services has been maintained over several years with indicators
measured in 2008-09 showing no statistically significant shifts at the 95% confidence level in comparison
with the previous three years.  
The performance evaluation for 2008-09 where clients were contacted by telephone was undertaken by Advantage Communications
and Marketing.  Telephone surveys were undertaken with random selections of clients who had directly sought information and
guidance during 2008-09.  600 client surveys were achieved to give a maximum standard error ratio of + / - 3.8% at the 95%
confidence level.  Overall, 85% of respondents contacted agreed to participate in the survey.  The valid sample for each service area
was as follows:

1

Table 1:  Summary of clients surveyed as part of SBDC’s 2008-09 performance evaluation.

Business Operators

Business Starters

Total Sample

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

Small Business Services

117

117

96

86

84

104

203

201

200

Business Information
and Licence Centre

52

35

49

149

165

151

201

200

200

Workshop attendees1

676

656

571

1696

1078

812

2372

1734

1383

Web-site visitors

114

18

33

315

65

75

600

116

154

Small Business Centres

124

60

60

90

140

140

214

200

200

Total

1083

886

809

2336

1532

1282

3590

2451

2137

Clients - Direct advice

2

1

All 1,981 who had attended a Program Workshop at the SBDC in 2008-09 were asked to complete an evaluation at the end of the
workshop, with 1,383 (or 70%) of all attendees completing a survey form and nominating if they were in business or planning or
contemplating starting a business.

2

154 visitors to SBDC’s websites (www.sbdc.com.au or www.licence.sbdc.com.au) completed the evaluation survey, with 108 (or
70%) noting they were in business or planning on starting a business.  In 2007-08, 116 web-site visitors completed the survey with
83 (or 71%) noting they were in business or planning on starting a business.
Indirect clients who attended functions where the SBDC was represented were not surveyed in 2008-09.  
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Usefulness of the information or guidance provided
All clients surveyed were asked – “How would you rate the usefulness of the information /
guidance provided to you?”  
Usefulness
provided
The evaluation showed the
usefulnessofofthe
the information/guidance
information / guidance provided
to both business starters and
% of client responses

100
established operators
was similar to previous years, with 91% of clients rating it as very or somewhat useful
90

% of client responses

in 2008-09, 88% in 2007-08,
2006-07, 2005-06 and 85% in 2004-05.   The target for 2008-09 was 89%.
80
70
60
50
40
Usefulness
of the information/guidance provided
30
20
100
10
90
0
80
2004-05
2005-06
2006-07
2007-08
2008-09
70
60
Very or somewhat useful Not useful Neither or can't say
50
40
30
20
10
0
2004-05
2005-06
2006-07
2007-08
2008-09

If information / guidance benefited business operations

% client responses

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
information
10
0
2004-05

Very or somewhat useful

Not useful

Neither or can't say

Contribution of service to start-up decisions
All clients interviewed who were either contemplating, planning or in the process of starting or buying

If

/ guidance benefited business operations

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2005-06
2006-07
2007-08
2008-09
you making an informed
decision
about starting
or buying
your business?”
Has benefited

No benefit

Neither or can't say

There was an increase of 6% compared to the last year in the number of business starters who believed
the services of the SBDC / SBCs had directly contributed to their decision to start or buy a business.  In
2008-09 72% gave a positive response compared to 66% in 2007-08, and 70%, 63% and 69% in 200607, 2005-06 and 2004-05 respectively. The target for 2008-09 was 68%.
2004-05

2005-06
Has benefited

2006-07
No benefit

2007-08

2008-09

Neither or can't say

Information or guidance received contributed to decision to
buy or start a business
80
70
60
50
40
30
Information
or
20
10
0
2004-05

% client responses

% client responses

a business were asked – “Would you say your contact with the SBDC / SBC directly contributed to

% client responses
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80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

guidance received contributed to decision to
buy or start a business
2005-06
Has contributed

2006-07
Has not contributed

2007-08

2008-09

Neither or can't say
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Usefulness of the information/guidance provided

2008-09

Usefuln
% of client responses

% client responses

% of client responses

100
90
80
The benefit of the information
or guidance received on business operations
70
60
50 andIndex
All clients who Customer
were in business
had met with a Small Business Centre manager or a Small Business
Service
40
Services consultant (that is they30had longer than a brief telephone conversation) were asked:
93
20
“To
or guidance received benefited the operations of your business?”
10
92 what extent has the information
0
91
2005-06
2006-07
2007-08
2008-09of their
Overall, 81% of business owners said2004-05
the information
or advice
had benefited
the operations

90
Very
or somewhat
Notof
useful
Neither the
or can't
say
business
to a great or to some extent. This
represents
anuseful
increase
8% against
2007-08
figure of 73%
89
88
but is consistent with that given in previous years (81%, 79% and 81% 2006-07, 2005-06 and 2004-05
87
respectively).  The target for 2008-09 was 79%.
86
85
84

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2004-0

2008-09

% client responses

90
80
70
60
50
40
9030
20
8910
0

Ve

Customer Service Index

If information / guidanc
2004-05

88

2005-06

2006-07

Has benefited

87

No benefit

2007-08

2008-09

Neither or can't say

86
85

Value of84
the information / guidance received
2004-05

2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

% client responses

007-08

% client responses

/ guidance
benefited
business operations
2004-05 If information
2005-06
2006-07
2007-08
2008-09

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2004-05

2008-09

2005-06

All business clients interviewed who had met with a Small Business Centre manager or a Small Business

Has benefited

Services consultant or had contacted the Business Information and Licence Centre were asked:
guidance received
contributed
to decision to
“How would you rate the Information
value of theor
information
or guidance
you received?”

guidance received

buy or start a business

Overall, 76% of those surveyed said they valued the information or guidance received, a similar score to that
80

% client responses

given in 2007-08 and 2005-06
(78% and 76%) and slightly down on the 2004-05 and 2006-07 result (83%
70
and 82% respectively).60
The target for 2008-09 was 80%.
50

Information o
Value of information or guidance received
2004-05

2007-08

Neither or can't say

2008-09

% client responses

80
70

2005-06
Has contributed

2006-07
Has not contributed

2007-08
Neither or can't say

60
50
40
30
20

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2004-05

10

Has

0
2004-05

2005-06
Valuable
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2008-09
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90

40
30
20
10
0

2006-07
Not valuable

2007-08
Neither or can't say

2008-09
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Impact of business and skilled migration on the State
State Migration Centre
The key role of the State Migration Centre (SMC) is to attract business and skilled migrants to Western
Australia to contribute to its economic well being through the attraction of new capital investment, and
to assist in addressing the State’s labour shortages.
Business Migration
The SMC Business Migration Program is a successful investment attraction initiative for Western Australia.  
Business migrants make a significant contribution to the State’s economic prosperity by being a leading
source of new capital, business establishment, export income and employment generation.
In 2008-09, the SMC granted State sponsorship approval for 489 new business migrants, and registration
for a further 23 new business migrants for an unsponsored visa from China, South Africa, the UK and 38
other countries to invest in Western Australia.  The economic benefit to the State from these migrants
moving to Western Australia over the next 24 to 36 months is expected to be a capital inflow of over
$561 million including $238.5 million invested in business and $53.12 million in State Treasury Bonds.
Table 1 below shows the potential economic benefit of the business migration program if migration
eventuates.
Table 1:
BUSINESS MIGRATION

2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

Total capital inflow

$393,740,000

$589,997,000

$640,061,000

$561,747,129

Capital invested in business

$192,216,000

$249,104,000

$253,144,000

$238,509,801

959

1,016

1,216

1,043

Number of  jobs created

Skilled Migration
The SMC Skilled Migration Program is an effective international labour attraction initiative for the State.  
Although this year the global economic downturn has had an impact on unemployment rates in Western
Australia, there are many industry sectors experiencing skill shortages in specific occupations. The
attraction of skilled migrants will assist employers to meet their future workforce needs.
This financial year the SMC granted State sponsorship approval for 3,958 new skilled migrants to move to
Western Australia from India, China, South Africa, the UK and 79 other countries. In addition to assisting
to address skills shortages, it is estimated these migrants will bring over $315 million into the State’s
economy to cover settlement and ongoing living costs. Table 2 below shows the potential workforce and
economic benefits of the skilled migration program if migration eventuates.
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Table 2:
SKILLED MIGRATION

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

1,127

1,667

3,958

$123,835,000

$185,670,000

$315,815,864

State sponsored migrants
Total Capital inflow

Customer Service Index
The Customer Service Index was introduced to measure the extent to which the SBDC and the SBC
network satisfied customer enquiries and requests for assistance.  Questions asked were included on
the Performance Evaluation Survey.  The Customer Service Index comprises five individual performance
indicators focusing on both the process and outcomes of providing services to clients.  The Customer
Service Index rating of 92% in 2008-09 compares favourably against the scores achieved in the previous
years (87% in 2007-08, 89% in 2006-07 and 2004-05, and 88% in 2005-06).
Customer Service Index

% of client responses

% client responses

Us

93
92
91
90
89
88
87
86
85
84
2004-05

2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2008-09

Customer Service Index

If information / gu

89
88

% client responses

% client responses

90

87
86
85
84

2004-05

2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2004-05

2005-

Has be
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Table 3:  Indicators showing the positive response that comprise the Customer Service Index over the last
five years along with the target for 2008-09 are shown in the table below.
2004-05
%

2005-06
%

2006-07
%

2007-08
%

2008-09
%

2008-09
Target

Usefulness:
How useful was the information
and guidance provided to you?

85

88

88

88

91

89

Business operations:
To what extent has the
information or guidance received
benefited the operations of your
business?

81

79

81

73

81

79

Access:
Would you describe the task of
accessing the service as being
easy or difficult?  

95

92

95

91

96

94

Service:
How would you rate the
overall level of customer service
provided by the staff?

92

92

92

91

96

93

Repeat:
Would you use the service(s)
again if the need arose?

91

91

91

93

94

92

Customer Service Index

89

88

89

87

92

89

Efficiency Indicators
Efficiency Indicators relate outputs to the level of resource inputs required to produce them.  The key
efficiency indicator for SBDC’s one Output is set out below.

OUTPUT: Information, Guidance, Referral and Business Development Services
Provision of specialised information, referral and business facilitation services for the effective
development of enterprises in Western Australia.
Four Efficiency Indicators are provided.  The score for each Indicator as well as the comparative scores set
in 2007-08, 2006-07, 2005-06 and 2004-05 along with the target for 2008-09 are set out below.
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EFFICIENCY
INDICATORS
Cost for direct
client contacts

2008-09
Target
$23.79

  $2.31

$116.51

2005-06

2004-05

$18.87

$23.97

$22.20

$22.47

$22.89

  $197,638

$2.36

  $2.20

  $2.10

  $2.95

  $2.68

$4,402,603

$84.81

$95.01

$112.21

$134.54

$136.14

$1,384,579

$1,356,443

$1,118,134

$1,008,266

51,914

Number of SBC 4
client contacts

Policy Advice 5

2006-07

83,884

Number of indirect
client contacts 3
Cost of SBC services

$6,529,699

2007-08

346,006

Number of direct client
contacts / equivalents 2
Cost of indirect
client contacts

2008-09
Actual

$1,492,056

$1,254,049

The target for 2008-09 is as published in the 2008-09 Budget Statements (Budget Paper No 2  Volume 3 Page 1049).

2

Number of direct client contacts is as specified in the Output Measures (refer Report on Operations) namely:  Clients – direct advice
(345,380) plus the number of ‘equivalent direct clients’ that are serviced through the provision of grant money (626) equals 346,006.
Explanation:
Direct client contacts have contacted the SBDC for guidance or information either by a personal visit, by telephone or have visited
SBDC web-sites for four minutes or more, or the BLIS web-site for two minutes or more.
Grants are given under the Business Migrant Incentive Program (BMIP) and the Export Accelerator Program (EAP).  The BMIP
provides funding for small businesses or potential business migrants to use the services of a private sector consultant to prepare
business or marketing plans, feasibility studies or a business proposal to enhance a visa application. The BMIP ceased in December
2008. The EAP provides specialised assistance to the SBDC’s Tradestart clients for export training, marketing services, registration of
intellectual property and language translation.
During 2008-09 the SBDC made 4 grants at a total cost of $31,293 resulting in an average grant per small business of $7,823.23.
Assuming the average hourly rate for the services of a private sector consultant is $100, the grant money provides each client with
approximately 78.23 hours of consultant’s time ($7,823.23 / 100).  From SBDC records, each SBDC consultant sees on average two
clients per hour.  Therefore the number of ‘direct client contacts equivalent’ is 78.23 (consultant hours) x 2 (clients per hour) x 4
(grants given) = 626 ‘direct clients equivalent’.
The reduced cost per direct client contact between the 2008-09 target and actual result relates to the overall increase in client
contacts during the year (up by 31,861 in 2008-09) along with reduced expenditure resulting from the cessation of the Go West
Now program.  

3

Indirect client contacts are exposed to a display of a range of advisory, information, referral and business services that would
impact on their growth and business development.  These include 20,314 who have attended Award Functions, Expos or other
Forums which SBDC has organised, has been the major sponsor where the focus has been on business development or where an
SBDC representative has given an address on small business matters. The increase in the cost of indirect client contacts relates to
the cessation of the Go West Now program resulting in a substantial reduction in visitors to Go West Now events (0 in 2008-09
compared to 11,791 in 2007-08).
Indirect client contacts also include the 63,570 occasions SBDC web-sites have been browsed for two to four minutes.
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4

SBC client contacts. In 2008-09 a total of 51,914 client assists were recorded, compared to 44,251 in 2007-08. The increased
number of client assists has resulted in a corresponding reduction in the cost per SBC client contact against the target for 2008-09.

5

Policy advice includes policy submissions, investigative research, ministerial correspondence, industry liaison and small business
sector advocacy. The cost of policy advice includes salaries and related staffing costs and all other direct costs associated with the
Policy, Planning and Stakeholder Relations section of the SBDC, together with a notional allocation of corporate overhead costs.
The variation between 2008-09 actual and target is the result of reduced costs associated with staffing vacancies and a long term
secondment during the year, together with reduced expenditure against two (2) key projects.

certification of
financial statements

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The accompanying financial statements of the Small Business Development
Corporation have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the
Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present
fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ending 30 June 2009 and
the financial position as at 30 June 2009.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would
render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or
inaccurate,

P. JAFFERIES
CHAt RMAN

S. MOIR
MANAGING DIRECTOR

ft BUTTSWORTH
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

/1 September2009
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12,383,989

SMALL BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
income statement
for the year ended 30 JUNE 2009
Note

2009

2008

$

$

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense

5

5,294,088

4,795,184

Supplies and services

6

3,211,279

4,585,580

Depreciation and amortisation expense

7

188,885

125,928

165,648

194,195

Communications expense
Maintenance expense

53,800

67,994

Grants and subsidies

8

3,024,591

3,165,168

Cost of sales

9

40,500

57,565

Other expenses

11

405,198

339,365

12,383,989

13,330,979

Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
User charges and fees

12

186,075

220,128

Sales

9

81,420

89,799

59,106

82,389

Interest revenue
Other revenue

13

183,575

119,612

510,176

511,928

0

3,500

0

3,500

510,176

515,428

11,873,813

12,815,551

13,038,000

11,764,000

0

990

8,862

0

Total income from State Government

13,046,862

11,764,990

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

1,173,049

(1,050,561)

Total Revenue
Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets

10

Total Gains
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer (a)
Resources received free of charge

14

a) Notional income equivalent to the notional superannuation expense included in employee benefits expense.
Commencing in 2008-09, the reporting of notional superannuation expense and the notional income equivalent has
been discontinued
The Income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SMALL BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2009
Note

2009

2008

$

$

1,763,793

682,820

28,968

27,746

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

15

Inventories
Receivables

16

501,785

665,973

Amounts receivable for services

17

116,000

116,000

2,410,546

1,492,539

Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services

17

115,000

100,000

Furniture, plant and equipment

18

452,664

458,875

Intangible assets

19

152,183

15,335

719,847

574,210

3,130,393

2,066,749

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables

21

257,546

470,528

Provisions

22

981,183

954,180

1,238,729

1,424,708

329,690

287,116

329,690

287,116

Total Liabilities

1,568,419

1,711,824

NET ASSETS

1,561,974

354,925

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
22

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Equity

23

Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

1,421,473

1,387,473

140,501

(1,032,548)

1,561,974

354,925

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SMALL BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
Note

Balance of equity at start of period
CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

2009

2008

$

$

354,925

1,427,434

1,387,473

1,259,473

34,000

128,000

1,421,473

1,387,473

(1,032,548)

167,961

0

(149,948)

23

Balance at start of period
Capital contribution
Balance at end of period
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Balance at start of period
Change in accounting policy (a)
Restated balance at start of period

(1,032,548)

18,013

1,173,049

(1,050,561)

140,501

(1,032,548)

Balance of equity at end of period

1,561,974

354,925

Total income and expense for the period (b)

1,173,049

(1,050,561)

Surplus/(deficit) for the period
Balance at end of period

(a) This change in accounting policy represents an increase in the asset capitalisation threshold from $1000 to $5000
in accordance with T1 1101 as from 1 July 2008. Under AASB 108, voluntary change in accounting policy is adjusted
against the opening balance of accumulated surplus/(deficit) for the earliest prior period.
(b) The aggregate net amount attributable to each category of equity is :
surplus $ 1,173,049  (2008: deficit $1,050,561).
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SMALL BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 JUNE 2009
Note

2009

2008

$

$

Service appropriation

12,907,000

11,633,000

Capital contributions

34,000

128,000

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

116,000

122,000

13,057,000

11,883,000

Employee benefits

(5,354,205)

(4,644,713)

Supplies and services

(3,440,550)

(4,625,537)

(169,134)

(192,005)

(48,505)

(58,904)

(3,026,301)

(3,163,458)

GST payments on purchases

(626,027)

(760,037)

Other payments

(367,581)

(325,207)

83,384

87,258

179,795

218,440

64,616

88,224

Holding account drawdowns
Net cash provided by State Government
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Communication expense
Maintenance expense
Grants and subsidies

Receipts
Sale of goods and services
User charges and fees
Interest received

66,897

49,358

GST receipts from taxation authority

GST receipts on sales

653,535

665,709

Other receipts

327,571

100,795

(11,656,505)

(12,560,077)

0

3,500

Purchase of non-current physical assets (a)

(319,522)

(345,391)

Net cash used in investing activities

(319,522)

(341,891)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1,080,973

(1,018,968)

682,820

1,701,788

1,763,793

682,820

Net cash used in operating activities

24

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD

24

(a) Due to the change in capitalisation threshold where assets below $5,000 are to be expensed, the cash flows
under investing activities represents the extent to which expenditure has been made for assets greater than $5,000
that are initially recognised as an asset in the balance sheet. Therefore, expenditure on items below $5,000 is
classified as an operating activity.
The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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small business development corporation
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
1. Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards
General
The Corporation’s financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2009 have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFRS), which comprise a
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (the Framework) and Australian
Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations).
In preparing these financial statements the Corporation
has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new
and revised Standards and Interpretations from their
operative dates as issued by the AASB and formerly the
Urgent Issues Group (UIG).
Early adoption of standards
The Corporation cannot early adopt an Australian
Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting
Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101
‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards
and Other Pronouncements’. No Standards and
Interpretations that have been issued or amended but
are not yet effective have been early adopted by the
Corporation for the annual reporting period ended 30
June 2009.
2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General Statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose
financial report which has been prepared in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards, the
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board as applied by the
Treasurer’s instructions.  Several of these are modified
by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary application,
disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s
instructions are legislative provisions governing
the preparation of financial statements and take
precedence over the Accounting Standards, the
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.
Where modification is required and has a material or
significant financial effect upon the reported results,
details of that modification and the resulting financial
effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
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(b) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention and are presented in Australian dollars.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise
stated.
The judgements that have been made in the process
of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at
note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies’.
(c) Contributed Equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners
Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires
transfers, other than as a result of a restructure of
administrative arrangements, in the nature of equity
contributions to be designated by the Government
(the owner) as contributions by owners (at the
time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers
can be recognised as equity contributions.  Capital
contributions (appropriations) have been designated as
contributions by owners by Treasurer’s Instruction (TI)
955 ‘Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned
Public Sector Entities’ and have been credited directly to
Contributed Equity.  
Transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other
than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by
owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and
non-reciprocal.  See note 23 ‘Equity’.
(d) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised  for the
major business activities as follows:
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Sales revenue represents revenue earned from the sale
of goods and services net of returns, allowances and
duties and taxes paid.  Revenue is recognised at the
point of sale for goods sold and at the time of delivery
for services charged.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues using the
effective interest rate method.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal
contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the
Corporation obtains control over the assets comprising
the contributions, usually when cash is received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not
contributions by owners are recognised at their fair
value.  Contributions of services are only recognised
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the
services would be purchased if not donated.
Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually
recognised on a net basis.  This includes gains arising
on the disposal of non-current assets.
(e) Furniture, Plant and Equipment
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of furniture, plant and equipment costing  
$5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost
of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their
useful lives.  Items of furniture, plant and equipment
costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed
direct to the Income Statement (other than where
they form part of a group of similar items which are
significant in total).
Initial recognition and measurement
All items of furniture, plant and equipment are initially
recognised at cost.  
Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, the cost model is used
for the measurement of all items of furniture, plant and
equipment where they are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation
Furniture, plant and equipment are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives using the straight line
method.  Depreciation rates applicable are as follows:
Furniture - 11.25% per annum
Equipment - 15% per annum
Fixtures and Fittings - 7.5% to 20% per annum
Computing Equipment - 30% per annum
These rates are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
relevance.

Notes to the financial statements

Service Appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at
nominal value in the period in which the Corporation
gains control of the appropriated funds.  The
Corporation gains control of appropriated funds at the
time those funds are deposited to the bank account or
credited to the holding account held at Treasury.  (See
note 14 Income from State Government).

(f) Intangible Assets
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing  $5,000 or
more are capitalised.  The cost of utilising the assets
is expensed (amortised) over their useful life.  Costs
incurred below the threshold are immediately expensed
directly to the Income Statement.
All acquired intangible assets are initially recognised at
cost.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit
(estimated useful life) on the straight line basis using
rates which are reviewed annually.  All intangible assets
controlled by the Corporation have a finite useful life
and zero residual value.  Amortisation rates applicable
are as follows:
Software - 30% per annum
Development costs - 30% per annum
Computer Software
Software that is not an integral part of the related
hardware is treated as an intangible asset.  Software
costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of
acquisition.
Development Costs
Development costs incurred for an individual project
are carried forward when the future recoverability can
reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project
costs are likely to  exceed $10,000.  Other development
costs are expensed as incurred.
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(g) Impairment of Assets
Furniture, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
tested for any indication of impairment at each balance
sheet date.  Where there is an indication of impairment,
the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is
recognised.  As the Corporation is a not-for-profit entity,
unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset,
the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to
circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially
understated, where the replacement cost is falling or
where there is a significant change in useful life.  Each
relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify
that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects
the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk
from falling replacement costs.
Refer to note 20 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome
of impairment reviews and testing.
(h) Leases
The Corporation holds operating lease arrangements
for the rent of the office building and motor vehicles.   
Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis
over the lease term as this represents the pattern of
benefits derived from the leased properties.  No finance
lease is  held by the Corporation.
(i) Financial Instruments
In addition to cash, the Corporation has two categories
of financial instrument:
     - Receivables; and
     - Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
These have been disaggregated into the following
classes:
Financial Assets
   - Cash and cash equivalents
   - Receivables
   - Amounts receivable for services
Financial Liabilities
   - Payables
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Initial recognition and measurement of financial
instruments is at fair value which normally equates to
the transaction cost or the face value.  Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is
the transaction cost or the face value because there is
no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement
is not required as the effect of discounting is not
material.
(j) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and
cash equivalent assets comprise cash on hand and shortterm deposits with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.
(k) Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries (see note 21 ‘Payables’) represent
the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the
financial year, as the pay date for the last pay period
for that financial year does not coincide with the end
of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within
a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Corporation
considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be
equivalent to its net fair value.
(l) Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding
Account)
The Corporation receives funding on an accrual basis
that recognises the full annual cash and non-cash cost
of services.  The appropriations are paid partly in cash
and partly as an asset (Holding Account receivable) that
is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding
requirement to cover items such as leave entitlements
and asset replacement.
See also note 14 ‘Income from State Government’ and
note 17 ‘Amounts receivable for services’.
(m) Inventories
Publication stocks are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.  Costs are assigned on an average
cost basis.
(n) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original
invoice amount.  The collectability of receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis for impairment and
any receivables identified as uncollectable are writtenoff in accordance to TI 807.  The carrying amount is
equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within
30 days.  See note 2(i) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note
16 ‘Receivables’.

Sick Leave

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when
the Corporation becomes obliged to make future
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services.   
The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they
are generally settled within 30 days.  See note 2(i)
‘Financial Instruments’ and note 21 ‘Payables’.

Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is
probable that sick leave paid in the future will be
greater than the entitlement that will accrue in the
future.

(p) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
and are recognised where there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
when the outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is probable and a realiable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.  See note 22
‘Provisions’.
(i) Provisions - Employee Benefits
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual and long service leave
expected to be settled within 12 months after the
balance sheet date is recognised and measured at
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled.  Annual and long
service leave expected to be settled more than 12
months after the balance sheet date is measured
at the present value of amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled.  Leave
liabilities are in respect of services provided by
employees up to the balance sheet date.
When assessing expected future payments
consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels including non-salary components
such as employer superannuation contributions.  
In addition, the long service leave liability also
considers the experience of employee departures
and periods of service.
The expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the balance sheet date on
national government bonds with terms to maturity
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows.
All annual leave and unconditional long service
leave provisions are classified as current liabilities
as the Corporation does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

Past history indicates that on average, sick leave
taken each reporting period is less than the
entitlement accrued.  This is expected to continue
in future periods.  Accordingly, it is unlikely that
existing accumulated entitlements will be used by
employees and no liability for unused sick leave
entitlements is recognised.  As sick leave is nonvesting, an expense is recognised in the income
statement for this leave as it is taken.

Notes to the financial statements

(o) Payables

Purchased Leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to
Public Service employees who have entered into
an agreement to self-fund up to an additional
four weeks leave per calendar year. The provision
recognises the value of salary set aside for
employees and is measured at the nominal
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. This liability is measured on the same
basis as annual leave.
Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board
(GESB) in accordance with legislative requirements
administers public sector superannuation
arrangements in WA.
Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme,
a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to
new members or the Gold State Superannuation
Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme
also closed to new members.
The Corporation has no liabilities under the
Pension or the GSS Schemes.  The liabilities for
the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded
GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to members
who transferred from the Pension Scheme,
are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS
Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent
contributions made by the Corporation to the
GESB.  The concurrently funded part of the GSS
Scheme is a defined contribution scheme as these
contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of
the concurrently funded GSS Scheme obligations.
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Employees commencing employment prior
to 16 April 2007 who were not members of
either the Pension or the GSS Schemes became
non-contributory members of the West State
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees
commencing employment on or after 16 April
2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme
(GESBS). Both of these schemes are accumulation
schemes. The Corporation makes concurrent
contributions to GESB on behalf of employees in
compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act
1992.  These contributions extinguish the liability
for superannuation charges in respect of the WSS
and GESBS Schemes.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of
the Pension and GSS Schemes, and is recouped by
the Treasurer for the employer’s share.
See also note 2(q) ‘Superannuation expense’.
(ii) Provisions - Other
Employment On-Costs
Employment on-costs, including payroll tax
and workers’ compensation insurance, are not
employee benefits and are recognised separately
as liabilities and expenses when the employment
to which they relate has occurred.  Employment
on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’
and are not included as part of the Corporation’s
‘Employee benefits expense’.  The related liability is
included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.  See
note 11 ‘Other expenses’ and note 22 ‘Provisions’.
(q) Superannuation Expense
The following elements are included in calculating the
superannuation expense in the Income Statement:
(a) Defined benefit plans - For 2007-08, the change in
the unfunded employer’s liability (i.e. current service cost
and, actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer
in respect of current employees who are members of the
Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a
benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and
(b) Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions
paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West
State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), and the GESB
Super Scheme (GESBS).
Defined benefit plans - For 2007-08, the movements
(i.e. current service cost and, actuarial gains and
losses) in the liabilities in respect of the Pension
Scheme and the GSS transfer benefits are recognised
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as expenses.  As these liabilities are assumed by the
Treasurer (refer note 2(p)(i)), a revenue titled ‘Liabilities
assumed by the Treasurer’ equivalent to the expense
is recognised under Income from State Government in
the Income Statement.  See note 14 ‘Income from State
Government’.  Commencing in 2008-09, the reporting
of annual movements in these notional liabilities has
been discontinued and is no longer recognised in the
Income Statement.
The superannuation expense does not include payment
of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part
of the cost of services provided in the current year.  
The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the
purposes of employees and whole-of-government
reporting.  However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is
a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because
the concurrent contributions (defined contributions)
made by the agency to GESB extinguishes the agency’s
obligations to the related superannuation liability.
(r) Resources Received Free of Charge or for
Nominal Cost
Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost
that can be reliably measured are recognised as income
and expenses, at fair value.
(s) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified
to be comparable with the figures presented in the
current financial year.
3. Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies
The judgements that have been made in the process
of applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements include:
Operating Lease Commitment
The Corporation has entered into a number of operating
lease arrangements and has determined that the lessors
retain the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the items.  Accordingly, the leases have been classified
as operating leases.
4. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and
estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Corporation has applied the following Australian
Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting
Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2008 that impacted on the
Corporation:

AASB 1004 ‘Contributions’;
AASB 1050 ‘Administered Items’;
AASB 1051 ’Land Under Roads’;
AASB 1052 ‘Disaggregated Disclosures’;
AASB 2007-9 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the review of AASs 27, 29 and 31
[AASB 3, AASB 5, AASB 8, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 116, AASB 127 & AASB 137]; and
Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’.
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Review of AAS 27 ‘Financial Reporting by Local Governments’, AAS 29 ‘Financial Reporting by Government
Departments’ and AAS 31 ’Financial Reporting by Governments’. The AASB has made the following pronouncements
from its short term review of AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31:

The existing requirements in AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31 have been transferred to the above new and revised
topic-based Standards and Interpretation. These requirements remain substantively unchanged. AASB 1050, AASB
1051 and AASB 1052 do not apply to Statutory Authorities. The other Standards and Interpretation make some
modifications to disclosures and provide additional guidance (for example, Australian Guidance to AASB 116
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ in relation to heritage and cultural assets has been introduced), otherwise there is no
financial impact.
Voluntary changes in Accounting Policy
The Corporation has increased its asset capitalisation threshold from $1,000 to $5,000 in accordance with TI 1101 as
from 1 July 2008. This has resulted in a decrease of $149,948 in the opening accumulated surplus as at 1 July 2007,
an increase of $10,023 in the 2007-08 deficit and also a decrease in the carrying amounts of furniture, plant and
equipment, and intangibles. Refer to note 18, 19 and 23.
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Corporation cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting Interpretation
unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements’.  
Consequently, the Corporation has not applied early the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations that have been issued and which may impact the Corporation but are not yet effective.
Where applicable, the Corporation plans to apply these Standards and Interpretations from their application date:
Title

Operative for reporting
periods beginning on/after

AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (September 2007). This Standard has
been revised and will change the structure of the financial statements. These changes will
require that owner changes in equity are presented separately from non-owner changes
in equity. The Corporation does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is
first applied.

1 January 2009

AASB 2008-13 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB
Interpretation 17 – Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners [AASB 5 & AASB 110]’.
This Standard amends AASB 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations’ in respect of the classification, presentation and measurement of noncurrent assets held for distribution to owners in their capacity as owners. This may impact
on the presentation and classification of Crown land held by the Corporation where
the Crown land is to be sold by the Department of Regional Development and Lands
(formerly Department for Planning and Infrastructure). The Corporation does not expect
any financial impact when the Standard is first applied prospectively.

1 July 2009

AASB 2009-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments [AASB 4, AASB 7, AASB 1023 & AASB1038]’. This Standard
amends AASB 7 and will require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and
liquidity risk with respect to financial instruments. The Corporation does not expect any
financial impact when the Standard is first applied.

1 January 2009
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5. Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a)
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)
Superannuation - defined benefit plan (c)(d)
Long service leave (e)
Annual leave (e)
Purchased leave (e)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

2009

2008

($)

($)

4,742,060

4,359,565

428,164

394,824

0

990

118,851

49,504

9,082

(15,208)

(4,069)

5,509

5,294,088

4,795,184

Includes fringe benefits tax.
Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme
(contributions paid).
Defined benefit plans include Gold State (pre-transfer benefit).
An equivalent notional income is also recognised (see note 14 ‘Income from State Government’).
Commencing in 2008-09, the reporting of notional superannuation expense and equivalent
notional income has been discontinued.
Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs such as payroll tax,  workers’ compensation insurance and other employee related expenses are
included at note 11 ‘Other Expenses’.  The employment on-costs liability is included at note 22 ‘Provisions’.
6. Supplies and services
Premises

595,546

527,512

Media, advertising and promotions

410,436

1,347,290

Travel and accommodation

437,682

491,915

Professional services

736,618

689,919

Small Business Initiative Fund payments

145,157

480,374

Sponsorships

132,471

127,570

Other services

619,036

716,162

Consumable supplies

134,333

204,838

3,211,279

4,585,580

Office furniture

1,862

1,862

Office equipment

6,796

7,800

Fixtures and fittings

87,139

69,272

Computing equipment

56,499

34,619

152,296

113,553

Intangible assets - software

26,450

2,661

Development costs

10,139

9,714

Total amortisation

36,589

12,375

188,885

125,928

7. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation

Total depreciation
Amortisation

Total depreciation and amortisation
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Small Business Centres - Operational grant
Small Business Centres - Capital grant

2008

($)

($)

3,008,341

2,890,511

0

184,990

Innovation to Market Program

4,000

8,652

Business Migrant Incentive Program

4,500

12,000

Export Accelerator Program

7,750

12,990

0

56,025

3,024,591

3,165,168

81,420

89,799

Opening inventory

(27,746)

(32,748)

Purchases

(41,722)

(52,563)

(69,468)

(85,311)

Dry Seasons Assistance Program

Notes to the financial statements

8. Grants and subsidies

2009

9. Trading profit
Sales
Cost of sales:

28,968

27,746

(40,500)

(57,565)

40,920

32,234

Motor vehicle

0

3500

Net gain

0

3500

Employment on-costs (a) (see note 5 ‘Employee benefits expense’)

258,686

219,457

Other employee related expenses (b)

104,284

91,858

Audit fees (c)

30,260

27,720

Bad debts expense

11,968

330

405,198

339,365

Closing inventory
Cost of Goods Sold
Trading profit
See note 2(m) ‘Inventories’.
10. Net gain on disposal of non-current assets
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets

See also note 18 ‘Furniture, plant and equipment’.
11. Other expenses

(a) Includes payroll tax and workers’ compensation insurance.  The on-costs liability associated with the recognition
of annual, purchased and long service leave liability is included at note 22 ‘Provisions’.  Superannuation contributions
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
(b)
(c)

Includes staff recruitment, staff training and staff amenities.
See also note 25 ‘Remuneration of auditors’.
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12. User charges and fees
Workshop income
Fees for service agreements provided to the Commonwealth Government:
Department of Transport & Regional Services
- Indian Ocean Territories Service Delivery Arrangement
Australian Trade Commission
- TradeStart
13. Other revenue
Unused Small Business Centre Zone Funding returned (a)
Unused Small Business Initiatives Fund returned
Sponsorships
Other

(a)

Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
The following liabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer
during the financial year:
Superannuation (b)
Resources received free of charge (c)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
Department of the Attorney General

(b)

(c)
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2008
($)
52,476

66,450

47,753

78,837

119,899

186,075

220,128

2,129
34,296
0
147,150

29,242
7,109
9,299
73,962

183,575

119,612

These funds will be held pending allocation in future periods to meet Small Business Centre
zone needs as they arise.

14. Income from State Government
Appropriation received during the year:
Service appropriation (a)

(a)

2009
($)
40,788

13,038,000

11,764,000

0

990

8,862

0

13,046,862

11,764,990

Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services delivered.   The
appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset).   The receivable
(holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in
leave liability during the year.
The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is a notional income to match the
notional superannuation expense reported in respect of current employees who are members
of the Pension Scheme and current employees who have a transfer benefit entitlement under
the Gold State Superannuation Scheme.  (The notional superannuation expense is disclosed at
note 5 ‘Employee Benefits Expense’).  Commencing in 2008-09, the reporting of the notional
superannuation expense and equivalent notional income has been discontinued. Where the
Treasurer or other entity has assumed a liability, the Corporation recognises revenues equivalent
to the amount of the liability assumed and an expense relating to the nature of the event or
events that initially gave rise to the liability.
Where services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Corporation recognises
revenues equivalent to the fair value of those services that can be reliably measured and which
would have been purchased if they were not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised
as expenses.

16. Receivables
Trade debtors
Net GST recoverable
Accrued interest
Prepayments

2009
($)
1,263,243
500,000
550

2008
($)
182,270
500,000
550

1,763,793

682,820

87,950
68,270
4,005
341,560

201,882
166,445
9,515
288,131

501,785

665,973
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15. Cash and cash equivalents
Bank account
Cash investments - investment with Department of Treasury and Finance
Cash on hand

The Corporation does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(n) ‘Receivables’ and note 31 ‘Financial Instruments’.
17. Amounts receivable for services
Current
Non-current

116,000
115,000

116,000
100,00

231,000

216,000

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations.  See note 2(l) ‘Amounts receivable for services
(Holding Account)’.  It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
18. Furniture, Plant and Equipment
Office furniture at cost

31,588

31,588

(30,580)

(28,718)

1,008

2,870

Office equipment at cost

139,024

139,024

Accumulated depreciation

(123,303)

(116,507)

15,721

22,517

Fixtures and fittings at cost

699,451

692,753

Accumulated depreciation

(387,618)

(300,478)

311,833

392,275

359,759

220,371

(235,657)

(179,158)

124,102

41,213

Accumulated depreciation

Computing equipment at cost
       Accumulated depreciation

452,664

458,875

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of furniture, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting
period are set out below.
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Office
Office
furniture equipement
$

$

Fixtures
and fittings

Fixtures and fittings work in progress

Computing
equipment

Total

$

$

$

$

2009
Carrying amount at
start of year

2,870

22,517

392,275

0

41,213

458,875

0

0

6,697

0

139,388

146,085

Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Carrying amount at
end of year

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,862)

(6,796)

(87,139)

0

(56,499)

(152,296)

1,008

15,721

311,833

0

124,102

452,664

21,128

46,315

162,323

23,374

120,225

373,365

(16,396)

(24,998)

(30,101)

(73,857)

(145,352)

2008
Carrying amount at
start of  year
Adjustments taken to
equity (a)
Restated amount at
start of year

0

4,732

21,317

132,222

23,374

46,368

228,013

Additions

0

9,000

329,325

(23,374)

29,464

344,415

Disposals

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,862)

(7,800)

(69,272)

0

(34,619)

(113,553)

2,870

22,517

392,275

0

41,213

458,875

Depreciation
Carrying amount at
end of year
(a)

With effect from 1 July 2008, the Corporation increased its asset capitalisation threshold from
$1,000 to $5,000.  As a result, comparative figures for the financial year ended 30 June 2008
have been restated to reflect this change in accounting policy.  See note 4 ‘Disclosure of changes
in accounting policies and estimates’.

19. Intangible assets
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Computer software at cost

202,823

45,398

Accumulated amortisation

(69,631)

(43,181)

133,192

2,217

Development costs at cost

49,367

33,355

Accumulated amortisation

(30,376)

(20,237)

18,991

13,118

152,183

15,335

2009

2008

($)

($)

2,217

9,474

0

(4,596)

Computer software
Carrying amount at start of year
Adjustments taken to equity (a)

2,217

4,878

Additions

157,425

0

Amortisation expense

(26,450)

(2661)

Carrying amount at end of year

133,192

2,217

Carrying amount at start of year

13,118

21,856

Additions

16,012

976

(10,139)

(9,714)

18,991

13,118

Restated amount at start of year

Development costs

Amortisation expense
Carrying amount at end of year
(a)

Notes to the financial statements

Reconciliations:

With effect from 1 July 2008, the Corporation increased its asset capitalisation threshold from
$1,000 to $5,000.  As a result, comparative figures for the financial year ended 30 June 2008
have been restated to reflect this change in accounting policy.   See note 4 ‘Disclosure of
changes in accounting policies and estimates’.

20. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment to furniture, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at 30 June 2009.
The Corporation held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the
reporting period and at balance sheet date there were no intangible assets not yet available for
use.
All surplus assets at 30 June 2009 have been written-off.
21. Payables
Trade payables

31,476

47,514

Other payables

0

73,216

145,790

219,798

80,280

130,000

257,546

470,528

Accrued expenses
Accrued salaries

See also note 2(o) ‘Payables’ and note 31 ‘Financial Instruments’.

83

Notes to the financial statements

		
22. Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a)
Purchased leave
Long service leave (b)

Other provisions
Employment on-costs (c)
Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (c)
(a)

321,808
1,440
611,825

314,739
5,509
591,682

935,073

911,930

46,110

42,250

981,183

954,180

314,895

274,400

14,795

12,716

289,395
32,413

261,722
53,017

321,808
314,739
Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date.  Assessments indicate that
actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date
More than 12 months after balance sheet date
(c)

2008
($)

329,690
287,116
Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date.  Assessments indicate that actual
settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date
More than 12 months after balance sheet date
(b)

2009
($)

203,942
722,778

197,227
668,855

926,720
866,082
The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment
on-costs including payroll tax and workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present
value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the
discount (finance cost), is disclosed at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits are set
out below.
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2008

($)

($)

Carrying amount at start of year

54,966

51,669

Additional provisions recognised

5,939

3,297

Carrying amount at end of year

60,905

54,966

23. Equity
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Corporation.  The Government holds the
equity interest in the Corporation on behalf of the community.
Contributed equity
Balance at start of year

1,387,473

Notes to the financial statements

2009
Employment on-cost provision

1,259,473

Contributions by owners
Capital contribution (a)

34,000

128,000

Total contributions by owners

34,000

128,000

1,421,473

1,387,473

(1,032,548)

167,961

Balance at end of year
(a)

Under the Treasurer’s instruction TI 955 ‘Contributions by
Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entitles’ Capital
Contributions (appropriations) have been designated as
contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation
1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities’.
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year
Change in accounting policy
Restated balance at start of period
Result for the period
Balance at end of year

0

(149,948)

(1,032,548)

18,013

1,173,049

(1,050,561)

140,501

(1,032,548)

1,763,793

682,820

24. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows
provided by/(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services

(11,873,813) (12,815,551)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 7)

188,885

125,928

Net (gain) on disposal of non-current assets (note 10)

0

(3,500)

Superannuation expense

0

990

8,862

0

Resources received free of charge (note 14)
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2009

2008

($)

($)

Decrease/(Increase) in receivables

164,188

(167,923)

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

(1,222)

5,002

(212,982)

188,379

69,577

106,598

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Decrease)/Increase in payables
Increase in provisions
Net cash used in operating activities

(11,656,505) (12,560,077)

25. Remuneration of auditors
Remuneration to the Auditor General (a)
- Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators

20,700

18,800

Remuneration to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
- Compliance audit
(a)

9,560

8,920

30,260

27,720

The fee for the 2007-08 audit was due and payable in the 2008-09 financial year.  
The fee for the 2008-09 audit ($21,500) will be due and payable in the 2009-10 financial year.

The expense is included at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.
26. Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers
Remuneration of members of the accountable authority
The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation,
non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
2009

2008

$0 - $10,000

6

6

$20,001 - $30,000

1

1

78,971

75,019

The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority is:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Corporation in respect of members of the
accountable authority.  No members of the accountable authority are members of the Pension Scheme.
Remuneration of senior officers
The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority,
whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall
within the following band are:
2009
2008
$20,001 - $30,000
$30,001 - $40,000
$70,001 - $80,000
$80,001 - $90,000
$100,001 - $110,000
$120,001 - $130,000
$130,001 - $140,000
$190,001 - $200,000

0
1
0
1
0
2
1
1

1
0
1
0
1
1
1
1

The total remuneration of senior officers is:
708,974
658,180
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Corporation in respect of senior
officers other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority.  No senior officers are
members of the Pension Scheme.
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27. Affiliated Bodies
Small Business Centres
During the year $3,008,341 was paid out to Small Business Centres by way of operational grants. The Centres
are separately incorporated entities located in city and country areas to assist small businesses to expand or
develop new business ideas.  
2009
2008
28. Indian Ocean Territories Service Delivery Arrangement
($)
($)
The Corporation has an agreement with the Commonwealth of Australia
to provide business information, enterprise development, assistance
and training to new and existing small to medium enterprises located
on Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Islands. An amount of $8,550 was
carried forward from 2007-08.  During 2008-09,  $3,340 was returned
from Christmas Island Chamber of Commerce for acquittal of 2007-08
funding and a further $66,450 was received from the Commonwealth.
Gross expenditure against this was $72,786 and the remaining $5,554
has been carried forward to the 2009-10 financial period.
29. Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure
additional to the amounts reported in the financial statements, is payable
as follows:
Within 1 year
0
Lease Commitments
Analysis of non-cancellable operating lease commitments for buildings and vehicles:
Within 1 year
59,673
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
23,755

88,743

259,386
76,369

83,428

335,755

24,500

45,706

Other expenditure commitments, being provision of catering and venue
facilities for the 2009 Western Australian Regional Small Business
Awards (2009), the redevelopment of the Go West Now website (2008)
and the provision of catering and venue facilities for the 2008 Western
Australian Regional Small Business Awards (2008), contracted for at
the balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as
follows:
Within 1 year
These commitments are all exclusive of GST.
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2009
($)
30.
31.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
No contingent assets or liabilities exist as at 30 June 2009.
Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Financial instruments held by the Corporation are cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables.   The Corporation has limited
exposure to financial risks.   The Corporation’s overall risk management
program focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Corporation’s
receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Corporation.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount
of those assets as shown in the table at note 31(c) ‘Financial Instrument
Disclosures’ and note 16 ‘Receivables’.
Credit risk associated with the Corporation’s financial assets is minimal
because the main receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding
account).  For receivables other than government, the Corporation trades
only with recognised, creditworthy third parties.   The Corporation has
policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history.   In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Corporation’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.  At the balance sheet date
there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
For financial assets that are past due, refer to note 31(c) ‘Financial
Instrument Disclosures’
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Corporation is unable to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.  The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk
through its trading in the normal course of business.
The Corporation has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows
including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows
to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign
exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Corporation’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The Corporation does
not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price
risks.  The Corporation has no borrowings and its exposure to market risk
for changes in interest rates relate primarily to cash and cash equivalents
which are interest bearing as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis
table at note 31(c) ‘Financial Instrument Disclosures’.
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2008
($)

2008
($)

1,763,793
322,955

682,820
427,397

257,546

470,528

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance sheet
date are as follows:
	Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (i)
	Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Notes to the financial statements

2009
($)

(i) the amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO
(statutory receivable) and prepayments.
(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures
Credit Risk and Interest Rate Exposures
The following table discloses the Corporation’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of financial
assets.   The Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the
balance sheet date is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown
below.  The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past
due but not impaired.  The table is based on information provided to
senior management of the Corporation.
The Corporation does not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.
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Interest rate exposure and ageing analysis of financial assets (a)

Interest rate exposure

Past due but not impaired

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

Carrying
amount

Variable
interest rate

Noninterest
bearing

Up to 3
months

3-12
months

%

$

$

$

$

$

Financial Assets
2009
Cash at bank

2.28

1,263,243

1,263,243

Cash investments

5.39

500,000

500,000

Cash on hand

550

550

Receivables (a)

91,955

91,955

Amount receivable for services

231,000

91,955

0

91,955

0

170,815

40,582

170,815

40,582

231,000

2,086,748

1,763,243

323,505

2008
Cash at bank

5.09

182,270

182,270

Cash investments

6.82

500,000

500,000

Cash on hand

550

550

Receivables (a)

211,397

211,397

Amount receivable for services

216,000

216,000

1,110,217

682,270

427,947

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable) and prepayments.
Liquidity Risk
The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. The contractual maturity amounts
are representative of the undiscounted amounts at the balance sheet date.
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities
Interest rate exposure

Maturity
dates

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

Carrying
amount

Variable
interest rate

Noninterest
bearing

Up to 3
months

%

$

$

$

$

Financial Liabilities
2009
Payables

257,546
257,546

0

257,546

257,546

257,546

257,546

470,528

470,528

470,528

470,528

2008
Payables

470,528
470,528

0

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities.
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-1% change

+1% change

Carrying
amount

Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

$

$

$

$

$
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Corporation’s financial assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is
assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.

2009
Financial Assets
Cash at bank
Cash investments

1,263,243

(12,632)

(12,632)

12,632

12,632

500,000

(5,000)

(5,000)

5,000

5,000

(17,632)

(17,632)

17,632

17,632

2008
Payables
Financial Assets
Cash at bank

182,270

(1,823)

(1,823)

1,823

1,823

Cash investments

500,000

(5,000)

(5,000)

5,000

5,000

(6,823)

(6,823)

6,823

6,823

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet are recognised at amounts that represent a
reasonable approximation of fair value.
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32. Explanatory Statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below.  Significant
variations are considered to be those greater than 5% and at least $15,000.
(a)

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2009
2009
Estimate
$

2008
Actual
$

1,843,000

2,314,000

Accomodation
A higher than expected electricity, car parking and general outgoings
expense have led to a higher accomodation expenditure.

565,000

601,000

Depreciation and amortisation

116,000

188,000

2,598,000

853,000

165,000

267,000

Grants and subsidies
The decrease relates to the reclassification of Commonwealth
Government Funding from “grants and subsidies” to “sales of goods
and services” occurring after the 2009-10 budget was finalised.

120,000

0

Other revenue
Additional revenue received from Department of Premier and Cabinet  
being contributions for business assistance vouchers associated with the
Ravensthorpe/Hopetoun Small Business Support Program.

160,000

243,000

		
		
Expenses
Supplies and services
Increases are due to the continuation of  Skills Migration and Business
Migration programs.

Additional depreciation and amortisation expense associated with an
increase in fixtures and fittings relating to office fitout, together with
computing equipment and software purchased during the year.
Other expenses
Reduction in expenditure mainly relate to the cessation of the Go West
Now program and a moratorium on Government advertising.  Further
reductions have resulted from a decrease in travel and marketing
expenses due to reduced participation at overseas migration events.  
Income
Sales of goods and services
The increase relates to the reclassification of Commonwealth Government
Funding from “grants and subsidies” to “sales of goods and services”
occurring after the 2009-10 budget was finalised.
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2009
$

2008
$

5,294,088

4,795,184

3,211,279

4,585,580

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Additional depreciation and amortisation expense associated with an
increase in fixtures and fittings relating to office fitout, together with
computing equipment and software purhased during the year.

188,885

125,928

Communications expense
A decrease in couriers and freight expense with less promotional materials
for the Skills Migration Program and Business Migration Program being
sent overseas.

165,648

194,195

Cost of sales
A decrease in sales for the year has led to a reduction in cost of goods
sold.

40,500

57,565

Other expenses
An increase in long service leave and annual leave provisions has led to
an increase in employment on-costs.

405,198

339,365

186,075

220,128

Interest revenue
A reduction in interest rates during the year has resulted in a decrease
in interest revenue.

59,106

82,389

Other revenue
The increase relates to contributions from the Department of Premier
and Cabinet for business assistance vouchers associated with the
Ravensthorpe/Hopetoun Small Business Support Program.

183,575

119,612

		
Expenses
Employee benefits expenses
The variation can be attributed to a 5% average salary increase and an
increase in long service leave and annual leave provisions.  In addition,
extra staff are employed for the continuation of the State Migration
Centre program.
Supplies and services

Notes to the financial statements

(b) Significant variances between actual results for 2008 and 2009

Reduction in expenditure mainly relate to   the cessation of the Go
West Now program, a moratorium on Government advertising plus a
decrease in marketing expenses associated with less participation by the
State Migration Centre at overseas expos.  In addition, there has been a
decrease in applications for the Small Business Initiative Fund from the
Small Business Centres.

Income
User charges and fees
The decrease has resulted from a reduction in success fees received  
under the Tradestart program from the Australian Trade Commission.  

Service appropriation
Increase in funding provided for the Interstate Skills Attraction Program
(GoWestNow) and the Small Business Centres.  In addition,  drawdown
of the Small Business Centre capital grant was deferred from 2007-08
to 2008-09.

13,038,000 11,764,000
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Glossary of Terms
used in this Report
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ABN

Australian Business Number

ABS

Australian Bureau of Statistics

ACCC

Australian Consumer and Competition Commission

AS

Australian Standard

ASIC

Australian Securities and Investment Commission

ATO

Australian Taxation Office

BEC

Business Enterprise Centre

BFS

Business Facilitation Services

BILC

Business Information and Licence Centre

BLIS

Business Licence Information Service

BMIP

Business Migrant Incentive Program

BMN

Business Migrant Network

CCI

Chamber of Commerce and Industry

COAG

Council of Australian Governments

DIAC

Department of Immigration and Citizenship

DOCEP

Department of Consumer and Employment Protection

DOIR

Department of Industry and Resources

DTF

Department of Treasury and Finance

EEO

Equal Employment Opportunity

HBBN

Home Based Business Network

IOGTA

Indian Ocean Group Training Association (Inc.)

ISSN

International Standard Serial Number

ITM

Innovation to Market

LDP

Leadership Development Profile

MIA

Migration Institute of Australia

National Executive of Small Business Agencies

PPSR

Policy, Planning and Stakeholder Relations

PSL

Priority Skills List

RCCIWA

Regional Chambers of Commerce and Industry (WA)

RDC

Regional Development Commission

RKP

Recordkeeping Plan

RMS

Record Management System

RRN

Ready Response Network

SBAS

Small Business Advocacy Service

SBC

Small Business Centre

SBCWK

Small Business Centre West Kimberley

SBCWA

Small Business Centres WA (Inc.)

SBDC

Small Business Development Corporation

SBEN

Small Business Exporters Network

SBIF

Small Business Initiatives Fund

SBIS

Small Business Impact Statement

SBMC

Small Business Ministerial Council

SBS

Small Business Services

SDA

Service Delivery Agreement

SMC

State Migration Centre

UK

United Kingdom

WARSBA

Western Australian Regional Small Business Award

WIBN

Women in Business Network

YBN

Young Business Network

Glossary of Terms used in this Report

NESBA
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